@Edelweiss

|deas create, values protect

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Corporate Identity Number: U45201TG2006PLC078157

Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited (“the Company*), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 317, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
ar j i : i bttt Oor the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical reguirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 These matters

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter j

Impairment of financial instruments (expected credit losses) (as described in Note 52(C) of the
standalone financial Statements)
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its financial assets as at the
reporting date using the expected credit loss
(ECL) approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on financial
instruments  over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about
past events, current conditions, and forecasts of
future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company’s financial
assets (loan portfolio).

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for;

Staging of financial assets (i.e. classification
in ‘significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR")
and ‘default’ categories);

Assigning internal rating grades to customers
for which external rating is not available:

Calibrating external ratings-linked probability
of default to align with past default rates:

Estimation of management overlay for
macro-economic " factors bearing a
correlation with the credit quality of the

Our audit procedures included but were not limited

to:

e Read and assessed the Company'’s
accounting policy for impairment of financial
assets and its compliance with Ind AS 109

e Tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls for staging of
loans based on their past-due status. Tested
samples of performing (stage 1) loans to
assess whether any loss indicators were
present requiring them to be classified under
stage 2 or 3.

e We performed procedures to test the inputs
used in the ECL computation, on a sample
basis.

e Tested assumptions used by the
management in determining the overlay for
macro-economic factors.

o Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed by
the Company in spreadsheets.
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In view of the high degree of management’s
judgement involved in estimation of ECL it is a
key audit matter.

Information technology (IT) systems and contro

Is

The reliability and security of IT systems play a
key role in the business operations, financial
accounting and reporting process of the
Company. Since large volume of transactions
are processed daily, the IT controls are required
to ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in an
appropriate manner. Any gaps in the IT control
environment could result in a material
misstatement of the financial accounting and
reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general IT controls and the
application controls specific to the accounting
and preparation of the financial information is
considered to be a key audit matter.

We performed the following procedures for testing
IT general controls and for assessing the reliability

of

electronic data processing, assisted by

specialized IT auditors:

The aspects covered in the IT General Control
audit were (i) User Access Management (i)
Program Change Management (iii) Other related
ITGCs - to understand the design and test the
operating effectiveness of such controls:

Assessed the changes that were made to the key
systems during the audit period and assessing
changes that have impact on financial reporting;

Tested the periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls wherever applicable) on
the IT application controls and IT dependent
manual controls in the system.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

e Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls, where deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the
scope of our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors report,

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the

fimarciat-posttion, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
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* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control-that-weidentify-duringouraudit:

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with

__by-this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
Z0BO1 & X\
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(9) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - (Refer Note 41 to the standalone financial statements);

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 72 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the note 72 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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" per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEA2883

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023




ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL
AND REGULATORY REQUIRMENTS"” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Re: Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (“the Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

O (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(aXB) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and are verified by the management according to a phased programme designed to
cover all the items over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
In accordance with the policy, the Company has physically verified certain property, plant and
equipment during the year and no discrepancies were noticed in respect of assets verified during
the year.

©) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name
of the Company.

()] The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

(i) @) The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly the

requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company had not been sanctioned any new working capital limit during the year. In respect
of in the overdraft facility outstanding last year, pursuant to confirmation received from the said
bank, there were no requirement to file any return/statement with the bank.

Giii) @) During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies or any other parties as follows:
Amounts in Rs. millions
Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances Put
in nature | Options
of loans
Aggregate amount
granted/ provided during
the year

Holding Company = - 4,786.80 = -

Subsidiaries 3,650.00 = 5,619.98 5 -

Fellow Subsidiaries - 5 12,215.09 : =

Others - = 794.10 - 988.02
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in
respect of above cases
B0/ ¢
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(b)

(c)

Holding Company 701.80 - - - -
Subsidiaries 4,643.85 - Nil (Net of - -

provision of

Rs. 5,889.73)
Fellow Subsidiaries 149.30 - 220.00 - -
Others - Rs. 63.45 - -

(Net of
provision of
Rs. 1,602.5)

*As disclosed in note 41.1 (b) to the standalone financial statements, charge created on
immovable properties of the Company amounting to Rs. 585.50 million.

During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments and
guarantees to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not
prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of a loans granted to group companies, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular. In respect of
loans granted to companies other than related parties, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular except in
the following cases:

Extent of

delay
>90 dn_\]lq

Due
date
\arious

Amounts in
Rs. Million

Rs. 40735

Name of the Remarks, if any
Entity

Various

Rs. 1. 653 0 million-outstandi
A J-RHHeR-odtstang

(d)

(e)

(f)

S
§
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parties on 31 March 2023.

Provision made in earlier years
amounting to Rs. 1,602.5 million

The following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days from companies or any other
parties to whom loan has been granted, and reasonable steps have been taken by the Company
for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

Name of the
Entity

Amounts in Rs.
Million

Due
date

Extent of
delay

Remarks, if any

Various

Rs. 4,073.5

Various

>90 days

Rs. 1,653.0 million outstanding

parties as on 31 March 2023,

Provision made in earlier years
amounting to Rs. 1,602.5 million

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to [companies, firms, Limited

—— Liability Partnerships or any other parties]. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
mm(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

\{«4} X
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vi)  (a)

(b)

The Company has not advanced loans to directors / to a Company in which the director is
interested to which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act 2013 apply and hence not
commented upon. The Company has made investments/ given loans /guarantees which is in
compliance to the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
cess, value added tax and other statutory dues applicable to it though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable. The provisions relating to custom, duty of excise, and sales tax are not
applicable to Company.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
cess, and other statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Period _ to £ Here——
Name of the | Nature of | Amount (Rs. In | which the { A
statute dues million) amount U
pending
relates
The
AY. 2015- | Commissioner
Income Tax Act, | Income 9.97 (demand paid | 16 of Income Tax
1961 Tax under protest Rs.1.99) (Appeals)
The
0.79 (demand paid | A.Y. 2017- | Commissioner
Income Tax Act, | Income under protestRs. | 18 of Income Tax
1961 Tax 0.16) (Appeals)
The
6.09 (demand paid | A.Y. 2018- | Commissioner
Income Tax Act, | Income under protest Rs.| 19 of Income Tax
1961 Tax 0.01) (Appeals)
‘ Value 26.63 (demand paid FY  2010-
Rajasthan Value | Added under protest Rs. 11
Added Tax Tax 13.50) Tax Board
Value 2.74 (demand paid FY 2012
Madhya Pradesh | Added under protest Rs. 1'3 Assistant
Value Added Tax | Tax 0.59) Commissioner
Value 55.16 (demand paid FY 2015-
Uttar Pradesh | Added under protest Rs. 1'6 Commercial
Value Added Tax | Tax 11.03) Tax Tribunal
Value Joint
Gujarat ~ Value | Added 29.39 (demand paid '1:5\( 21 4 Commissioner
Added Tax Tax under protest Rs. nil) (Appeals)
Value FY 2016- Joint
/4/’0:‘:&? ~Gujarat ~ Value | Added 53.68 (demand paid 1 7 Commissioner
///\/)?/'-\:;-7 Added Tax Tax under protest Rs. 6.3) (Appeals)
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Value 7.04 (demand paid FY 2017
Gujarat  Value | Added under protest Rs. 1'8 Deputy
Added Tax Tax 0.75) Commissioner
24.41 (demand paid FY 2018- o
under protest Rs. 19 Commissioner
Gujarat (GST) GST 1.82) of Appeals
27.46 (demand paid FY. 2019 o
under protest Rs. 20 Commissioner
Gujarat (GST) GST 2.12) of Appeals
1.68 (demand paid
Maharashtra under protest Rs. I;S;( BRHIE Commissioner
(GST) GST 0.08) of Appeals
Assistant
F.Y. 2017- | Commissioner
5.06 (demand paid | 18 of Appeals
Rajasthan (GST) | GST under protest Rs. Nil)
Value
Rajasthan Value | Added 19.99 (demand paid '1:6Y 2015- Commissioner
Added Tax Tax under protest Rs. Nil) of Appeals
(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the

books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has used
funds raised on short-term basis aggregating to Rs.5,087 million for long-term purposes.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has taken
funds from following entities and persons on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as per details below:

Nature Name Amount Name  of | Relation Nature of transaction
Of fund | of lender involved the for which funds
taken subsidiary, utilized
Group Various Rs. 4,427.7 | Edelweiss | Subsidiary | Amount utilised for
Company | group million Investment lending to the
loan companies Advisor subsidiary  of  the
Limited Company to repay its
existing liabilities
Group Various Rs. 2,321.7 | Ecap Associate | Amount utilised for
Company | group million Equities lending to the
loan companies Limited associate of  the
Company to repay its
existing liabilities

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause

T
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() (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

()] As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies

Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

iv)  (2)  The C : , : . .

business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(© The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group has one Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 1090.4 million and amounting to Rs.
290.8 million in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix)

(xx)  (a)

L&k 74 |

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 62 to the financial statements, the ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of. Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions
and considering the Company’'s current liabilities exceeds the current assets by INR 761.1
million, the Company has obtained the letter of financial support from the Holding Company,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule
VIi of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section
135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 51 to the financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a special account in
compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 51 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Cla Iy A s s
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ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEA2883

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10Q) of the Act tothe extent appticattetoam

audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statement
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to these standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receip‘gg;%ﬁdtexpgnditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
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Chartered Accountants

management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

w‘\“w/’ /

per Shrawan Jalan.
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 23102102BGXJEA2883

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 2,094.32 2,298.90
(b} investment property 2 1,677.69 1,926.05
(c) Other Intangible assets 2 9.52 8.93
(d) Intangible assets under development 2 - ]
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3 12,586.26 22,460.78
{ii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 378.39 34036
{iit} Loans 5 61.33 8,051.19
{iv) Other financial assets 6 33.47 32.46
{f) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 887.25 1,101.16
{g) Income tax assets (net) 8 1,559.07 1,546.13
{h} Other non-current assets 9 18.78 18.83
Total Non-current assets 19,306.08 37,784.79
Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Stock-in-trade 10 178.00 624.98
{ii) Investments 11 6,603.75 3.65
{iii) Trade & Other receivables 12 352.40 187.90
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 13 75.92 117.79
(v) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 47.30 67.49
{vi} Loans 15 236.33 2,884.32
{vii) Other financial assets 16 2.12 4.29
{b) Other current assets 17 217.66 231.56
Total Current Assets 7,713.48 4,121.98
TOTAL ASSETS 27,018.56 41,906.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 18 465.35 465.35
(b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 18 $,500.00 9,500.00
(c) Other equity 19 (5,639.79) (3,672.77)
Total Equity 4,325.56 6,292.58
Non-current liabilities
{a) Einancial & i
(i) Borrowings 20 14,144.97 15,700.65
{ii} Other financial liabilities 21 67.96 142.00
{iii)Lease liabilities 45 114 3.07
{b) Provisions 22 5.29 5.32
Total Non-current liabilities 14,219.36 15,851.04
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 7,954.14 19,386.41
(ii} Trade payables 24
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 2.07
Total outs?anding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and 220.84 95.12
small enterprises
(i} Other financial liabilities 25 266.15 239.67
{b} Other current liabilities 26 28.75 38.49
{c) Provisions 27 4.76 1.39
Total Current liabilities 8,474.64 19,763.15
Total Liabilities 22,694.00 35,614.19
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27,019.56 41,%06.77
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limite:

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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Partner
Membership No: 102102

Ravindra Dhobale
Executive Director & CFO
DIN No.:05147051 No.:07297081
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
Fee and commission income 28 783.34 754.23
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 29 (43.85) (589.05)
Interest income 30 1,778.59 4,537.67
Sale of commodities 4,729.50 4,584.77
Other operating revenue 31 355.42 367.72
Total Revenue from operations 7,603.00 9,655.34
Other income 32 409.17 1,185.97
Total Revenue 8,012.17 10,841.31
Expenses
Purchases of commodities 4,726.53 4,583.05
Impairment on financial instruments 33 198.83 120.65
Employee benefits expense 34 431.67 537.04
Finance costs 35 3,254.23 5,399.90
Depreciation and amortisation 2 463.60 408.72
Other expenses 36 690.39 612.43
Total expenses 9,765.25 11,661.79
Profit / {Loss) before tax (1,753.08) {820.48)
Tax expenses
(1} Current tax = -
(2) Deferred tax (net) 215.46 (74.47)
Profit / (Loss) after tax for the year {1,968.54) {746.01)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
= gat--fesshon-defined-benefitplans taTor 127827
Deferred Tax Benefit on above 1.46 9.72
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss} {2.73) {18.10)
Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (1,971.27) {764.11)
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
{1) Basic 43 (27.23) {11.38}
{2) Diluted (27.23) (11.38}
Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/£300005
“hde N/‘/— o

per Shrawan Jalan

HA
Partner / Q
[o

Membership No: 102102

{
(i A \ * |
gl wonBh g )
\\ * 5
‘\4—'9',9\_/ 0Q/4
Mumbai \\]FQED Acic’//
May 22, 2023 ——

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

e

Ravindra Dhobale
Executive Director & CFO
DIN No.:05147051
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

A Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

(1,753.08) (820.48)
Adjustments for
Impairment on financial instruments (net) (49.15) 120.65
Depreciation and amortisation expense 463.60 408.72
Profit / {loss) on sale of fixed assets (net) 8.47 (4.24)
Provision for employee benefits 3.38 29.17
Profit / (Loss) on sale of current and non-current investments (111.69) {1,059.15)
Fair valuation of non-current investments 356.25 235.39
Share of profit from partnership firm {0.04) (4.15)
Finance costs 3,248.02 5,316.63
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 2,165.76 4,222.54
Changes in working capital
(increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 394.79 32.77
(Increase) / Decrease in stock-in-trade 446.99 1,068.94
{increase) / Decrease in loans and advances 10,637.85 10,217.53
{Increase) / Decrease in other assets {8.54) 439.03
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payable 120.26 (349.53)
Increase / (Decrease) in liabilities and provisions {51.02) (825.44)
Cash {used in) / generated from operations 13,706.09 14,805.84
Taxes refund/ (paid) (net) (14.49) 31.11
Net cash generated from operating activities - A 13,691.60 14,836.95

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plants and equipment {20.69) {409.44)
Proceeds from sale of property, plants and equipment 0.98 176.40
Net addition of capital work in Progress - 2.06
Purchase current and non-current investments (568.92) {10,364.56)
Sale current and non-current investments 3,092.93 1,803.46
Net cash generated from / {used in} investing activities - B 2,504.30 (8,792.08)
C Cash flow from financing activities

{Repayment of) / Proceeds from loans (net) {Refer note 1) (8,140.35) (3,384.80)
Proceeds from / (Redemption of ) subordinated liabilities (1,787.40) -
Issue of Equity share capital - 2,501.20
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper - 250.00
Redemption of commercial paper (2,809.25) =
Principal repayment of leases (Ind AS 116} {1.89) (24.54)
Interest paid (3,498.88) (5,592.54)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities - C (16,237.77) (6,250.68)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {41.87) (205.81)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 117.79 323.60
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 75.92 117.79




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Note:
Bank receipt and Bank paymemts for transaction with group companies in which turnover is quick, the amount are large, and the maturities are short are
presented on net basis in accordance with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flow.
Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under “Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 "Statement of Cash Flows " specified
under Section 133 of Companies Act ,2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note:
3 Component of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
in current accounts 75.92 108.24
in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 9.55

75.92 117,79

This is the Cash Flow Satement referred to in our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003€/E300005
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Partner Executive Director & CFO
Membership No: 102102 DIN No.:05147051
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
Statement of changes in Equity

Equity share capital

Balance as at 01 April 2022

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
previous reporting
period

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance at the end of
the reporting period|
{31 March 2023)

Share Capital due to

the beginning of the

capital

465.35 = 465.35 - 465.35
Equity share capital
Balance as at 01 April 2021 Changes in Equity balance at |Changes in equity share Balance at the end of!

the reporting period’

prior period errors  |previous reporting {31 March 2022)
eriod
397.75 - 397.75 67.60 465.35

Refer Note 18 for other details

Membership No: 102102

Mumbai
May 22, 2023

BIN No.:05147051

Murmbat
May 22, 2023

No.:07297081

Other Equity
Other
Reserves and Surplus Comprehensive
Income Total
i i iti i Debent: d ti Revaluati
Capital Reserve Capital Redemption Securities Premium ESOP reserve ebenture redemption Retalned earilgs evaluation
Reserve Account reserve Reserve
Balance as at 01 April 2021 402.85 30.00 2,644.51 62.41 2,356.22 (11,816.86) 960.84 (5,360.03)
Profit or loss - - - = 2 (746.01} (746.01)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - (18.10) (18.10)
T it - - - - - -
otal Comprehensive Income for the (764.11) (764.11)
year
Reversal of ESOP‘/SAR on cancellation - - - & E 17.77 = 1777
[1apses post vesting
Transactions with sharehalders in their - - 2,433.60 #
capacity as such - on issuance of equity # 2,433.60
shares
Transfers to / from retained earnings -1,154.17 1,154.17 =
Reversal to retain earning E = - = - 45.40 (45.40) -
Balance at 31 March 2022 402.85 30.00 5,078.11 62.41 1,202.05 (11,363.63) 915.44 {3,672.77)
Profit or {loss) {1,968.54) (1,968.54}
Other comprehensive income {2.73) {2.73)
Total Comprehensive Income for the - - - - - (1L,971.27}) - (1,971.27)
year
Ri
eversal of ESOP(SAR on cancellation 227 227
/lapses post vesting
Reversal to retain earning 45.40 (45.40) =
Balance at 31 March 2023 402.85 30.00 5,078.11 62.41 1,202.05 (13,285.25 870.04 (5,639.79)
Refer Note 19 for other details
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP s For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ﬁ . Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003£/E300005 y 4 ‘\" uB O/\
l\ re w = I L5 W‘}' =
-
per Shrawan Jalan Ravindra Dhobale ya Suneja Shah
Partner Executive Director & CFO ctor Company Secretary




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.1

1.2

Significant accounting policies

Background

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited {‘the Company’) was incorporated on October 17,
2006 in the State of Maharashtra. It is a part of Edelweiss Group and is a ultimate subsidiary of
the listed holding company Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. The Company provides loans
to group companies and makes investments within the group. It also holds the technology
shared service centre which provides service to group companies. Further, the company owns
property which earns regular rental income.

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

The Company’s financial statements has been prepared and presented in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and in compliance with the Division Ii
of the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other
financial assets held for trading, which have been measured at fair value. The Company’s
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) in millions.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the company’s
normal operating ryrlp Based aon the nature of services rendered to customers and time

1.3

elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of
the consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle
of 12 months.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and
expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from the estimates.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)

1.4

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recognized when the company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when the
customer obtains control of that asset. When a performance obligation is satisfied, the
Company recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price (excluding estimates
of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation. The Company
applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

(i) Identification of contract(s) with customers;

(ii) Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;
(iii} Determination of transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
(v) Recognition of revenue when each performance obligation is satisfied

Fee income including advisory fees is accounted over the period as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

Business support services including web based services are accounted on accrual basis in
accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the company and the
counterparty.

Profit / loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis.

Commodities sales are accounted as per terms of agreement with the parties.

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

Warehouse income is recognised on accrual basis by reference to the agreements entered
with customers.

Agency commission/procurement income is recorded in pursuant to the terms and
conditions mentioned in scope of work /agreement.

Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of realisation.

Interests on delayed payments, warehousing charges and rental income are recognised on
accrual basis by reference to the agreements entered.

Profit / loss from share in partnership firm is accounted once the amount of the share of
profit/ loss is ascertained and credited / debited to the Company’s account in the books of
the partnership firm.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive
payment of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Real estate advisory income is recognised basis the terms and conditions mentioned in the
agreement.

Revenue from Investment management servicesis recognised over the tenure in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the investment management agreement with
group companies.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1.5 Financial Instruments
Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date i.e. the date that the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place. The Company recognises borrowings when funds are received.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and
the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit and loss when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

e  Amortised cost
e  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised
cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

e if those sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

o if such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashflow.

e selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved bot
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
Amortized cost and Effective interest rate (EIR)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or
originated credit impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated
by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or

fssuedprimarity for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value under Ind AS 109. These include debt securities, equity instruments, mutual fund
units, nifty linked debentures etc.

Disclosure requirement of ind AS 107-Financial Instruments: Disclosure
Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries,
associates, and other group companies) at fair value through profit or loss, unless the
management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be
measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries and associates
are carried at cost as permitted under Ind AS 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements). The investment in other group companies are carried at cost.

Investment in mutual funds and preference Shares

The Company subsequently measures all investments in mutual fund and preference shares at
fair value through profit or loss as these financial assets do not pass the contractual cash flow
test as required by Ind AS- 109- Financial Instruments, for being designated at amortised cost
or FVTOCI, hence classified at FVTPL.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant
‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at
amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the companys own equlty instruments is recognised and deducted dlrectly in
equity. No gain or lo rofit
of the company's own equity instruments.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares issued are classified as financial liabilities and are measured at
fair value at inception and at amortised cost subsequently.

Where the transaction price for the preference shares issued differs from the fair value, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss unless the difference is a deemed capital contribution
from the company, in which case, the said difference is recognized in equity.

In accounting for these preference shares at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition,
interest expense based on the effective interest rate is recognized in profit or loss. This effective
interest rate is based on the initial measurement of the preference shares (fair value) and the
maturity amount. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss unless the
difference is due to a transaction with a related party, in which case, the same is recognized as
a deemed distribution or return of deemed capital contribution, as the case may be.

Compulsory Convertible Instruments

Compulsory Convertible Debentures/ Preference shares are separated into liability and equity
components based on the terms of the contract. At the inception of the Compulsory Convertible
Instruments, the following two elements will be separated:

(a) a liability component arising from the interest payments; and
(b) an equity component representing the delivery of fixed number of equity shares in future.

On issuance of the Compulsory Convertible Instrument, the fair value of the liability portion is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent non convertible bonds. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion of the
bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the compound
instrument since it meets Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, criteria for fixed to

E;LV\ fixed classification. The carrying amount of the equity component is not subsequently re-
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Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates
a business line.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical
ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that
ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between
the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts, in
this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require
the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company
uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables.

The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
the receivables.

For all other financial instruments, the company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the
reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default {EAD), for financial

assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
/Q\/@/A—LL/BO ncommitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawrr =
",,J./ \\{fc own as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be dra\z\/n
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the company’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on
the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis. However,
some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements, is valued
daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations

are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the
carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better
option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value
less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date in line with the company’s
policy.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the company has
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest
rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate
risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and continue to
be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the
company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as
basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
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Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines
the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their
performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date Fair value is the prlce that would be recerved to seII an asset or paid to transfer a

fair value measurement is based on the presumptnon that the transact:on to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to
show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

* Level1financial instruments ~Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has
access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there
are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical
assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on
the balance sheet date.

¢ Level 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over
the entire period of the instrument’s life.

e __* Level 3financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
/{T_@_Q/\{{l\?\ significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
/R \\(’\Q\‘\ the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
’ ‘( -\ have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual
assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting
period.

1.6 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders
for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

17 Foreign currency transactions

I'heTinancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the
Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

1.8 Retirement and other employee benefit
Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based
on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
<. earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur.
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Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

1.9 Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent
company. These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the
difference between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent
company on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the
ultimate parent company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent company. These are
classified as equity settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the company’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
"ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting
period, the company treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a
different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the date
of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule Ii of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has evaluated
the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the
Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as
follows:

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Estimated
Nature of assets Useful Life
Building (Other than Factory Building) 60 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8 years _=——==x
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Office equipments 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years
Solar Power Plant 15 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised
at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Land and buildings are subsequently shown at fair value based on periodic valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. Valuations will be
carried out on a regular basis, unless the management consider it appropriate to have an earlier
revaluation, such that the carrying amount of property does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying

amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Subsequent measurement of land and building under revaluation model

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to
other comprehensive income and shown as a revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. An
exception is a gain on revaluation that reverses a revaluation decrease (impairment) on the
same asset previously recognised as an expense. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against the revaluation
reserve directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged
to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from the
revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of
financial position — refer to the accounting policy 1.16. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised
at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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1.11

1.12

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful
life.

Intangible assets under development are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition
of such assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as
an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet
date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject
to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Inventories

1.13

1.14

\

Inventories in the form ot commodities are valued at weighted average cost or net realisable
value, whichever is lower.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is
disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a
possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the company. Claims against the company, where the possibility of any outflow of
resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
‘substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable
temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of deductible
temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back. When this
is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that:

* the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

* tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

the perlod in WhICh the hablllty is settled or the asset reahsed based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be realized
in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written down or
written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

1.15 Operating leases

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the

date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
/»’\1\’8—(?&\(\ initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
>N
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Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes
to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Company as a lessor

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative
period. As a lessor the company classifies its lease as either operating or financing leases. A
Lease is classified as finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an operating lease if does not.

1.16 Investment property

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the
investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful
life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the same period.

1.17 Receivables from Agency Business

The Company’s business includes ‘Agency Business’ wherein acts as a procurement agent for its
various principals, and renders other related end to end value additive services like
procurement formalities including importing, receiving and storing of goods, insuring,
maintenance of goods in proper condition, dispatch to designated parties, facilitating funding,
etc. The Company procures goods and makes payment to the supplier on behalf of the principal.
The payment made to supplier is shown as trade receivables (current) and is secured by
inventory held on behalf of principal marked as lien.

1.18 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the
management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
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that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the company's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with

or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or not, to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold
improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset).

1.19 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occu

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
\B /;g to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at

,, <@ \ the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of//(J
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair
values.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

¢ Probability of default (PD) calculation includes historical data, assumptions and
expectations of future conditions.

*  The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk

and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit
loss and the qualitative assessment.

*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
*  Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

° Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic

* Inputs, such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs,
Exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD)

¢ Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It is company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 1.6, recognises interest income / expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the
expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of
the product life cycle.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour
and life- cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are integr




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses with respect to
certain subsidiaries where the Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be
recoverable based on the estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved
business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which
the Company expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses
its incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. Incremental borrowing rate is
the rate of interest that the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment.

1.20 Standards notified but not yet effective

Amendment Ru|es 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to to amend the foIIownng lnd AS whlch are effectlve from
01 April 2023.

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and apply

to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(ii} Amendment to Ind AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency
with the amended requirements.

(iii) Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no
—_ Ionger applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

~& ~\The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earli ”Cn—;’;\?\\
) Tdsin
A\ i;omparatlve period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative peyio - NG \‘\
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability should also be recognised for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with
leases and decommissioning obligations.

Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101.
The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.




Juiuiewas oY) uo uonedadap palesaladle papiodal sey Aueduwiod Yl ‘£Z0Z 'TE YdIe papud
unowWe siy] "3asNoH ssIom[ap3 ur Aueduio) Ag paumo $100|) 104 { INDIIN,) IBqUINIA 1218319 §

x

(&)

\

He
“UoH|IW £2Z "SY 4O mz_m\iﬁ
eaA ay1 SuLnp ‘IO wouy jerosdde Suiliemy “Zz-TZ0ZAd W padieys uasg pey uol||iw 05'6vT sy 01 Sununowe uone(daidap pue vﬁ__muamy.w, oy
uonesodio] [edidiunip 03 uolIw 85 TEE Sy 01 Sununowe sagieyd {,1S3,) xapu| 9deds Joo|4 [euonippe pied pey Auedwo?) ay1 ‘2Z-1202 A4 w::_fft AN
A\

0z 210N 43f21) S21N3U2GIP 3}qIIIIAUCI-UON fo 2ouDNSS Jof pabpajd 240 §)3ssO wmeVO,\.ﬁzm,
su X

56 SE'L8 06'S v1's 11'88 L8'96 01’6 £6'8 v0'L6 |e1oL
56 SEL8 06'S vr's 1188 £8'96 or'e £6'8 v0'L6 . 3JEMYOS
1eah ayy Jeah ayy 1e3h ayy
EiILE ScOZAEW.TE Buunp sjusugsnipe 1ea8 [ ECOZABILE Buunp sjuawsnipe  Suunp syuawisnipe oz ivdy T 51955y jo uonduasag
sy sy TGS ay3 10y adsey) e sy sy — i e sy
FECIERE] jusuLiedw) pue uonesIowy pajejnwnady ¥20|g 5504
s1assy ajqiduelul 1410 D
69°LL9'T 94708 E 9E'8YT ovr'vss SY'08b'T & & Sp'08v‘Z |e1]
9T0vST 947208 = 9€'8vC 0r'vSS CO'EVET = g TOEVET « Suipying pue ey
EV'LET ¢ - - & EVLET & A EVLET + puel
1e9A ayy JesA sy aead ayy
€C0T BN TE £T0T 41BN TE Supnp syusunsnipe 1eah 720z IMdY T ET0C BN TE Supnp Ip Supnp p Z20Z |Mdv T syassY 40 uopdysaq
e sy e sy Pt a3 10 9810Yy) jesy e sy - r— e sy
320ig 19N juauuedwi pue uoneasdag paiejnwinioy )20|g sS045)
« Aiadoud yuaunsanui'g
ZEY60°T LOLvL [4%3] 0t1'01Z 11029 6ETP8'T BE'68 9L'TT 10°616C |elol
L8l 12834 # [4%% 0T'6E 5079 = E S029 Jamod sejos-A13umyde|n pue Jueld
L8t LILE 6609 0€'6 98'88 6855 0859 we [Xar4ns s1ndwo)
208 0zog 19°'TC 99's ST9y 2T8E 9’2t Tz SL°85 Juawdinba a0
60°0 6L°T S0 671 vt 881 v6°0 e f4:54 EETRIVET
08'tt vTiv # 08’9 rrov v0'0L = €0 1869 $3JN1IX(4 pue 3unyuIng
910 vE0 @ €00 T€0 050 E & 050 wawdinb3 pue jueld
6€°0 62°0 = a1} sTo 890 = = 890 SISIWIN PlOYy3sed]
6v'198°T 67°59Y = L0181 44714 8L'9TE'T = s 81'97€°C
60 it < 9T YL61T EETLT = = gezen sasiuaud pjoyases|- NoY
0'€91 E = % = 20°e91 % g 09T # 4 puel
juawdinb] pue jue|d ‘Alsadosg
aead ayy PLEVEI Jeah ayy
£20Z BN TE €20C /RN TE Suynp syuaunsnipe Jeah 220z Idvl T €T0T 1EN TE Supnp fp Suunp p zZZ0zIMdY T syassy Jo uonduasag
e sy e sy i ayy oy adieyd jesy jesy [siibgsnpag e e sy
yr0|g 313N wawedw)| pue uoiieaidsq paie|nwindY 32018 55019

juawdinb3 pue juelq ‘Ayisdosd v

4

{suojius uj saadna uelpu] :Aduaiin))
(panunuod) £70Z YI1BIAl TE PAPU3 JE2A DY) 10§ SIUBIIIEIS [BIDUBLYY BY) O) SION

palw] sa21AI95 21e10d10) ' [INY SSIIM[BPI



suolul 85 T6E
o, ‘sy 03 Bunuznown wniwa.d [S4 puo sabipya Juawdojanap pazioidnl puo pind Apoaip spy Aubdwed alti (INDIN) IDGUIN 1210219 fo U0NDICAI0D BQUIN LWOoLf [pA0IddD BUIIDMD PUD PI1IIIGNS UD3G JADY |SH [DUOHIPPD J0f UDID PasINaYH
Li . (€7 210N pup 07 310N 43f24)sa1ubdwio) dnoio AG pauiplqo sapipnf ugo) 1suDBD DIPu} f0 YUDG AIDIS 0) PANSSI 3}UDINDD DI0TI0) PUD SIIMUIYGIP 3{GI1IIAU0D-UON JO 33uDNSS} 10f pabpajd 210 $13ssp asal L,
! q i
suoy|IW TO'0 "SY UBYY SS3] S1UNOWe $31edlpul 00°0
£6'8 11°88 oT'0 601 €E€°LL Ho'L6 Lro 0L'9 1506 feaoy
£€6'8 1188 9ro 601 EELL Ho'L6 Lo 0L'9 1506 aremyos
- \
74 o e ieah sy i e leakayy 1eah ayy id
ZTOTARNTE TLOTARNLLE Buyunp sjusunsnipe  aeaA ayl loj adiey) FeazIev T EeoCAENTE Suunp Ip Suunp Ip LE0Z 1OV T s)assy jo uonduasag
jesy jesy je sy 1. sy jesy
/ suoponpsa / suonanpag / suonippy
¥o0|8 19N JuBuIIEdW] PUB UONESITIOWY PIBIAWNIY s}d0|g s5010
s)assy ajqIdueu] JBYI0 D
50'926'T ov'vss (4411 TY'S6T 1TvLiE qr-08y'T 97°08T 0T'viT T9'98€Z |eloL
29'88L'T ov'vss st ¥°s61 TZ'vie QEvE'T 92°081 orvit 8T6YT'T . 8 ng pue ie(4
EVLET & 2 = i gy LET = # EV'LET « puel
Jesh ayy leakoyy aeal ayy
<20T BN TE 20z BN TE 1202 |udvy T TZ0Z AN TE 120ZIMdY T
Buunp sjuswigsnipe  1eaA ayy s0j 38steyn Suunp fpe  Suunp fp 51355y j0 uondusag
e sy e sy e sy sy e sy
/ suondnpag / suonanpaa / suonippy
2019 19N Jusuwedw] pue uoneRaldag pajenWndY )30|g 55040
sAuadoad usunsanu) g
06'862°C 11029 19°0L LE'20T SE€'88Y 0'616'C £2°98 €£9°821 19'948°C (e3oL
58'7¢ 0Z'6€ E £E'S L8'EE 079 B - S0'Z9 Jamod Jejos-Assuiydey pue Jueid
ree 9888 9L'6T 0S'€el sot qrait ETEE £9'8 LL9ET siaindwo)
09°'¢CT ST9p 06'9Z ot £0'€9 L85 0L°6Z S0 oz'gs uawdinba 32140
8LT o7 STy 1o vy q8¢ L0'S SE'T v59 S3AIYaA
LE'6T rrov 86°L 186 19'8¢ 18'69 99'6 ™ LY6L Sanxi4 pue aInpuIng
610 T€0 8T ar'o L6°T S0 09°€ - oty wawdinb3 pue jueld
€50 ST0 2 st'o 000 490 S 50 10 sosiwald ployasea
95°Z¥0'T red2:14 = 09191 [ak4al dL92e'T e 8VLIT 0£'602'C # +3uip|ing
65T vL6TT - 60T S9°8T1 ge'zer L0°s 8€0 WLt sasiwaid pjoyasea|- NOH
70€91 & e = 2 40°€91 E a 20'est #.pue]
juawdinby pue juejd ‘Auadosd
- Jeak ayy i s Jead ayy leahayy I
BEOEARINTE NNQN@ s WTIE  guunpsjuaunsnipe  1eak ay2 Joj aieyy _chNm_w ths -o.- < L Suunp fpe Suunp Iy . w< 53355V 40 UoNdinsag
e
e L / suonanpag . B / suonanpag / suonippy
320|9 19N uauutedu] pue uonepasdag paleNWnady 320|g 55049
juawdinb3 pue jueld ‘Auadold v z
(suoriw vl saadny uegpuy :A>ouaLIN}
{panunuod) £207 Y24BIN TE PIPUS JESA BU) 10} SIUBIIIELIS [BIDUBUY BY3 O SBION
PRI S3TIAIAS 1ei0dio] 1 [eINY SSIPMIIP3




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions})

2 (D) Intangible assets under development
Gi Block
Description of Assets = == Ll —e
As at April 01, 2022 Additions Capitalization As at March 31, 2023
Capital WIP - Software - - - -
Total e - - -
G Bl
Description of Assets - — rass Block —
As at April 01, 2021 Additions Capitalization As at March 31, 2022
Capital WIP - Software 2.06 - 2.06 =
Total 2.06 = 2.06 =

Intangible assets under development aging schedule

There are no Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

As at March 31, 2023

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Intangible assets under development Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in Progress = = = =
Projects temporarily suspended S & & #
Total = = = =
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Intangible assets under develop B Total

Projects in Progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Total

2(E) There are no Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

D
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
3 Non-current investments
Unquoted Investments
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (fully paid up)
Nido Home Finance Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Housing
Finance Limited) 38,300,000 2,829.00 38,300,000 2,829.00
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 28,999,994 38.86 28,999,994 38.86
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 100,549,994 1,000.10 100,549,394 1,000.10
Allium Finance Private Limited 934,339 67.35 800,000 21.18
Investments in equity instruments of other group companies (fully paid up}
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited ** - - 5,181,837 110.35
Investments in equity instruments of other companies {fully paid up)
Inditrade Business Consultants Limited 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Agri Warehousing Service Providers (India) Association - - 90,000 0.90
Non cumulative Compulsorily convertible redeemable preference share
Allium Finance Private Limited 4,100,329 858.92 4,044,412 839.75
Compulsorily convertible Debentures
0.01 % Edel Land Limited - - 6,600,000 6,600.36
0.01 % Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 575,000,000 5,750.42 575,000,000 5,750.48
Investments in debentures (fully paid up)
10.25% ECL Finance Limited Perpetual Bonds - - 1,950 2,126.26
Investment in Alternative Investment Fund
Edal H P ta k. it Tach C i QL2 10070
ey BLE
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund - - 3,592 314.08
India Credit Investment Fund Il 261,179 2,611.79 158,897 1,598.14
India Credit Investment Fund | 147,909 1,055.49 391,000 2,147.00
Carrying Value of Investment 14,212.03 23,576.35
Less : Impairment Allowance* {1,625.77) (1,115.57}
Total T 12,586.26 T 22,6078

* Impairment allowances is taken basis the estimate of the fair value of the underlying assets.

** Pledged with Catalyst trusteeship Limited as a security against issue of the Non convertible Debentures by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited amounting
to Rs3,500 million

Note: Disclosures as required by IND AS 107 have been seperately provided in Note 57




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
{Currency. Indian rupees in millions)

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with banks

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

- Fixed deposits with banks 354.17 339.13

- Accrued interest on fixed deposits 21.97 1.23

Earmarked balances with bank in current account {unpaid dividends) 2.25 &

378.39 340.36

(refer note 42 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits )

Loans- Non Current

Secured*

Receivables from financing business 583.34 1,404.15

Provision for expected credit loss on loans (532.82) (1,289.93)
50.52 114.22

Unsecured

Loans and advances to related parties 5,945.54 13,669.17

Provision for expected credit loss on loans** {5,934.73) (5,732.20)
10.81 7,936.97

Intercorporate deposits 1,055.62 1,055.62

Accrued interest on Intercorporate deposits 14.07 14.07

Impairment on intercorporate deposits (1,069.69) (1,069.69)
61.33 8,051.19

* Secured against securities

**Impairment on loans given to its subsidiary basis the estimate of the fair

value of the underlying assets of the said subsidiary.Refer note no 60

Other financial assets

Rent and other deposits 24.60 23.75

Deposits placed with /for exchange /depositories 8.87 8.71
33.47 32.46




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7 Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets
Loans
Provision for standard assets - ECL provision 559.98 845.74
Provision for non-performing and doubtful advances - ECL provision 126.76 126.23
Leases - Ind AS 116 0.40 1.07
Investments and other financial instruments
Provision for Diminution in value of current investments - 1.98
Unused tax credit
MAT credit entitlement 581.92 581.92
Unused tax losses
Accumulated Losses 203.41 203.41
Gratuity & other Employee Benefits 2.30 2.28
Others - 0.08
Deferred tax assets (A) 1,474.77 1,762.71
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation {including intangibles) 508.74 501.77
Investments and other financial instruments
Fair valuation gain of investments and stock in trade 1.44 16.06
Borrowings
Effective interest rate on borrowings 47.85 113.95
Others 29.49 29.77
Deferred tax liabilities (B) 587.52 661.55
Deferred tax assets (net} (A-B) 887.25 1,101.16

Note: Refer note 59 for disclosures on Deferred Tax.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

8 Income tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes
{net of provision for income tax of Rs.2,073.33 millions (Previous year: Rs.
2,073.33 millions))

9 Other non-current assets
Other deposits

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

1,559.07 1,546.13
1,559.07 1,546.13
18.78 18.83
18.78 18.83




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

10 Stockin trade

As at As at
At fair value through profit or loss March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Debt securities 54.24 620.70
(ii) Nifty-linked debentures 123.76 4.28
TOTAL 178.00 624.98
(i) Stock in trade held outside India - -
(ii) Stock in trade held in India 178.00 624.98
Total 178.00 624.98
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

11

As at
March 31, 2023

Current investments

Investments in partnership firm, Capital account

As at
March 31, 2022

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 3.16 3.23
Investment in others
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 0.42
Compulsorily convertible Debentures
0.01 % Edel Land Limited 6,600.59 -
6,603.75 3.65

Note: Disclosures as required by IND AS 107 have been seperately provided in Note 57




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

12

Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - Unsecured
Receivables - Credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

Trade Receivables aging schedule

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

352.40 187.90
362.75 361.24
715.15 549.14
362.75 361.24
352.40 187.90

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months -1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

352.40

352.40

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

1.52

12.31

362.75

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Gross Receivables {A)

353.92

4.86

12.31

344.06

715.15

i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

(1.52)

(4.86)

(12.31)

(344.06)

(362.75)

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total ECL Provision on receivables (B)

(1.52)

(4.86)

(12.31)

(344.06)

(362.75)

Total receivables net of provision = (A)-(B}

352.40

352.40

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from

due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months -1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good

187.90

187.90

{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

4.86

361.24

{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Gross Receivables {A)

549.14

i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

(12.32)

(25.02)

(319.04)

(361.24)

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Total ECL Provision on receivables (B)

(319.04)

(361.24)

Total receivables net of provision = (A)-(B)

187.90

187.90
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13

14

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months

* Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 9.55 millions)
held under encumbrance - refer note 42

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits

(Refer note 42 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits )

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

7592 108.24

- 9.55
75.92 117.79
47.30 67.49
47.30 67.49
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
15 Loans
Secured
Receivables from financing business* - 1,317.58
Provision for expected credit loss on loans - (196.74)
g 1,120.84
Unsecured
Loans and advances to related parties 220.00 1,523.64
Accrued interest on loans 3.28 441.16
Provision for expected credit loss on loans - (202.24)
223.28 1,762.56
Loans and advances to employees 13.05 0.92
236.33 2,884.32
* Secured against securities
(Refer Note-60)
16 Other financial assets
Receivable from exchange / clearing house (net) 0.52 0.52
Margin placed with broker 0.07 2.07
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind for value to be received 1.52 1.70
2.12 4.29
17 Other current assets
Input tax credit 163.27 162.08
Advance to employees 2.46 1.03
Prepaid expenses 19.67 34.44
Vendor Advances 3.54 5.11
Contribution to gratuity fund (Refer Note 46) 28.71 28.90

217.66 231.56
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
18 Share capital
Authorised:
4,75,00,000 {Previous year: 4,75,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 475.00 475.00
6,70,00,000 (Previous year: 6,70,00,000) preference shares of Rs. 10 each 670.00 670.00
1,145.00 1,145.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
(a} Equity Shares
4,65,35,367 (Previous year: 4,65,35,367) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 465.35 465.35
465.35 465.35
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature
{i) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ('CCPS’)
13,59,955 CCPS (Previous year 13,59,955) - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares {“CCPS”} of face value of Rs. 10/~ along with premium of Rs. 357.66 Per Share 500.00 500.00
{ii) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCDs')
90,00,000 CCDs {Previous year 90,00,000) of the face value of
Rs. 1,000/- each 9,000.00 9,000.00
9,500.00 9,500.00
ili of shares {ing at the b and at the end of the year:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 46,535,367 465.35 39,775,367 397.75
Issued during the year % - 6,760,000 67.60
Qutstanding at the end of the year 46,535,367 465.35 46,535,367 465.35
Shares held by holding Company
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Percentage Percentage

Number of shares Shareholding

Number of shares Shareholding

Equity shares
Edel Finance company Limited *

Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

46,535,367 100.00%

46,535,367 100.00%

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Percentage Percentage
# Number of shares Shareholding Number of shares Shareholding
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Edel Finance company Limited 46,535,367 100.00% 46,535,367 100.00%

Rights, p esand r d to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company,
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

Terms of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS")
Non-cumulative Dividend of 0.01% per annum on the face value of the CCPS shall be paid to the CCPS holders. The CCPS will automatically be convertible into equity shares at the end of 10 years
from the date of allotment i.e. March 30,2021, 1 CCPS will be Converted into 1 Equity Share. 13,59,955 equity shares will be issued on conversion .

Terms of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (the “Debenture”/”CCDs”)
CCD carrying coupon of 0.01% on the face value of the CCDs shall be paid to the CCD holders.The CCDs will be convertible into equity shares within period not exceeding 10 years from the date of
allotment i.e. March 26,2021. 1 CCD will be converted into 2.71 Equity Shares. i.e 24,390,000 equity shares will get issued on the date of conversion of CCD

Note 1:
The Company has neither alloted any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash or as bouns shares nor has it bought back any share during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

*Includes shares held by Nominee Shareholders
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other Equity
Capital Reserve 402.85 402.85
Capital Redemption Reserve 30.00 30.00
Securities Premium Account 5,078.11 5,078.11
Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,202.05 1,202.05
Revaluation Reserve through other comprehensive income 870.03 915.44
ESOP Reserve 5 62.41 62.41
Retained earnings {13,285.25) {11,363.63)
(5,639.79) (3,672.77)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital Reserve
The company recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the comapany’s own equity instruments to capital reserve.

Capital redemption reserve

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium. A sum
equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of
section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issuance of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve
The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general

reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general
reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

Debenture redemption reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve from annual profits until such debentures are
redeemed. The Company is required to transfer a specified percentage (as provided in the Companies Act, 2013) of the outstanding redeemable debentures
to debenture redemption reserve. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures. On
redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings.

ESOP reserve

Certain employees of the company have been granted options to acquire equity shares of the Ultimate Parent Company (Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited). This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant dates as recognised over the vesting period of such options,
to the extent that the Ultimate Parent Company has not recovered such cost from the company.

Revaluation Reserve

The company decided to move to revaluation model from cost model for accounting a class of asset (i.e. flats and building) as at 31st March 2020. The
management approved revaluation of owned land and buildings classified under property plant and equipment after assessing the valuation made by duly
appointed independent valuer. The difference between valuation amount and the carrying value of land and buildings is accounted under Revaluation
Reserve through other comprehensive income.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

20 Non-Current borrowings
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures * 6,063.07 6,032.29
Interest accrued on borrowings 452.60 398.36
Unsecured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures (NCDs) 5,500.00 -
Interest accrued on borrowings 129.30 -
Loans and advances from related parties 2,000.00 9,270.00
14,144.97 15,700.65
*Secured by charge on immovable property and a pari passu charge on the
receivables and stock in trade to the extent equal to the principal and
interest amount i.e. redemption value of debentures.
21 Other financial liabilities
Rental Deposits 67.96 142.00
67.96 142.00
22 Non-Current provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated leave absences 5.29 5.32
5.29 5.32
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
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As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
23 Current borrowings
Secured
Bank overdraft - 882.44
[Secured by charge on Fixed deposit with bank held by one of the subsidiary
company]
Sub-total (A) - 882.44
Unsecured
Loan from related parties 5,231.60 5,249.41
Non-convertible debentures - 5,500.00
Commercial paper 2,320.00 5,370.00
Less : Unamortised discount (110.26) (351.00)
2,209.74 5,019.00
Preference Shares Capital from Fellow Subsidiaries 426.68 2,214.87
Preference Shares Capital - Others 20.42 19.64
Sub-total (B) 7,888.44 18,002.92
Interest accrued on borrowings (C) 65.70 501.05
Total (A+B+C) 7,954.14 19,386.41
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Asat As at
31 March 2023 March 31, 2022

24  Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro, small and medium enterprises 2 207
Total ou.tstandmg dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium 220.84 0512
enterprises

220.84 97.19

For trade payables due for payment, following ageing schedule shall be given:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

As at March 31, 2023 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Moreithan
years
i) MSME % . E P .
(ii} Others 220.84 s s g 220.84

{iii)Disputed dues-MSME = r g 5

(iv)Disputed dues-Others = = P

Total 220.84 - N I 220.84

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

As at March 31, 2022 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morehang
years|
(i) MSME 2.07 ¢ f 3 2.07
(ii} Others 95.12 v 5 A 9512

(iii) Disputed dues-MSME = . E z A

(iv)Disputed dues-Others

Total 97.19 - - - 97.19

As at As at
31 March 2023 March 31, 2022
25  Other financial liabilities

Accrued salaries and benefits . 162.96 234.80
Unpaid dividends 2.25 -
Retention money payable 1.29 1.29
Rental Deposits 92.81 -
Other payables 6.84 3.58
266,15 239,67

26  Other current liabilities

Withholding taxes, Goods & services tax and other taxes payable 12.23 26.42
Others 16.52 12.07
28.75 38.49

27  Current provisions

Compensated absences 1.28 1.20
Provision for capex 3.48 0.19

4.76 1.39

.
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(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

28 Fee and commission income

Income from commodities services - 0.78
Business support services income 776.46 740.13
Advisory income 6.88 13.32
783.34 754.23
29 Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes
(A) Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss
Investments
{Loss}/ profit on trading of securities {net) 192.06 (657.73)
Fair value gain/(loss) {310.96) (233.57)
Fair value gain - Debt Instruments (45.29) (1.82)
Derivatives
{Loss)/ profit on trading in equity derivative instruments (net) 8.69 14.76
(B) Others
Profit / {loss) on sale of long term investment 41.14 (62.60)
Income distribution from Fund 70.55 347.76
Share of profit / (loss) in partnership firm (0.04) 4.15
Total Gain/(loss) from treasury {A+B) (43.85) {589.05)
30 Interestincome
Interest Income from group company loan 1,315.25 3,100.17
Interest Income on credit substitutes 275.19 132.32
Interest income on fixed deposits 20.94 53.06
Interest income on debt instrument 164.74 1,220.47
Interest income on margin with brokers - 0.16
Interest income on delayed payments 2.27 0.01
Interest Income - others 0.20 31.48
1,778.59 4,537.67
31 Other operating revenue
Warehouse charges - 54.68
Rental income 355.42 313.04
355.42 367.72
32 Other income
Miscellaneous income 5.21 39.86
Interest on Income Tax Refund 14.81 24.37
Profit / (loss) on sale of long term investment * 389.15 1,121.74
409.17 1,185.97

*The Company has sold its stake in one of its fellow subsidiaries based on independent valuer report to another fellow subsidiary of the
Company and accordingly, other income includes a gain on sale amounting to Rs.384. 90 millions ( Previous year Rs. 1115.90 millions).




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
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For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

33 Impairment on financial instruments
Bad- debts and advances written off 238.47 (7.65)
Diminution in value of investments 510.13 =
Provision for non performing assets (558.18) 140.34
Provision for doubtful debts (1.10) (12.04)
Other Credit Cost 9.51 -

198.83 120.65

34 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and Bonus 367.08 480.30
Contribution to provident and other funds 21.29 26.36
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) and Stock 368 e
Appreciation Rights (SAR) : ’
Staff welfare expenses 39.62 21.42

43167 537.04

35 Finance costs
Interest on debentures 1,179.79 2,021.21
Interest on inter-corporate deposits 271 =
Interest on bank overdraft 0.87 0.17
Interest on loan from holding company 1,009.00 2,005.73
Interest on loan from group companies 452.04 689.83
Interest - others - 70.41
Interest on lease liabilities 0.26 0.40
Discount on commercial paper 410.75 420.01
Financial and bank charges 6.20 12.00
Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income tax 0.01 0.87
Finance charge on preference shares issued 192.60 179.27

3,254.23 5,399.90




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
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For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

36 Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion 6.63 4.33
Auditor's remuneration (refer note below) 9.05 8.58
Commission and brokerage 0.14 4.10
Communication expenses 21.38 20.07
Computer expenses 128.85 96.98
Computer software 109.80 89.91
Clearing and custodian charges 0.72 1.42
Directors' sitting fees 1.02 0.76
Electricity charges {net) 31.62 2.90
Foreign exchange loss {net) 0.08 0.05
Insurance 2.44 8.57
Legal and professional fees 239.08 157.74
Loss / (gain) on sale of fixed assets (net) 8.46 (4.24)
Membership and subscription 5.18 0.39
Office expenses 61.93 48.62
Postage and courier 0.13 0.09
Printing and stationery 2.15 6.45
Rates and taxes 8.68 7.56
Rating support fees 4.06 4,98
Rent 4.56 30.00
Repairs and maintenance - Building 0.06 0.07
Repairs and maintenance - others 7.87 2.74
Goods and service tax (GST) 6.83 10.81
Stamp duty 0.68 0.88
Stock exchange expenses 1.00 2.70
Transportation charges 0.02 5.73
Travelling and conveyance 11.48 12.22
Warehousing charges 0.42 54.99
Outside Service Cost 11.90 14.57
Miscellaneous expenses 4.17 17.46
690.39 612.43

Auditor's remuneration:
Statutory audit 5.50 5.00
Limited Review 3.00 3.00
Certification and consultation 0.44 0.52
Reimbursement of expenses 0.11 0.06
9.05 8.58
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37

“Nuwama Clearing Services Limited ("NCSL") (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited), an erstwhile associate of the
Edelweiss Financial Services Company Limited (EFSL) challenged an order, by an investigating agency, marking lien on its clearing
account, before the 47th Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate Court, Mumbai (“ACMM”). Since the investigation against Anugrah
Stock and Broking Pvt. Ltd. (“trading member”), for which NCSL was a clearing member, is still under process, the said Court contended
that it had no objection to setting aside the lien order, upon NCSL providing an undertaking to keep sufficient assets unencumbered. The
above case which is pending for hearing before ACMM, has now been transferred to the City Civil & Sessions Court under Maharashtra
Protection of Interest of Depositors (In Financial Establishments) Act, 1999 {MPID). During the year ended March 2023, hearing has
happened with Securities Appellate Tribunal with respect to NSCL’s application made to SAT for challenging NCL’s perverse order against
NCSL; and the said hearing has been concluded and for which no order or further directions from SAT have yet been received. The
matter is sub-judice and has been listed for further hearing and there is no further update on this matter during the year.

On behalf of NCSL, the Company has provided the undertaking to keep sufficient unencumbered assets amounting to Rs. 920.00 millions
belonging to the Company and the said lien has been set aside. During the year ended March 31, 2023 the Company had transferred,
such perpetual bond that was given as undertaking to investigating agencies, amounting to Rs. 1,950 millions to Edel Finance Company
Limited in accordance with undertaking submitted to investigating agency that total given undertaking will remain with Edelweiss Group.
The Company has been represented by NCSL that it has acted in accordance with the agreement entered with the trading member and
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Accordingly, there is no adjustment required in the financial results for the year
ended March 31, 2023.
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38 Segment reporting
Primary Segment (Business segment}

For management purpose,the Company’s business is organised into business segments based in products and services and has five reportable segments as
mentioned below:

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business Capital intensive business includes Lending, investing and investment property

Treasury management Interest income and trading in securities

Business Support Services Centralized support services in the nature of administration, compliance, payroll, finance and
accounts,Technical support etc. provided to group companies

Warehouse services Warehouse services includes warehousing and collateral management services for agri commodities

Trading in commodities Purchase and sale of commodities

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual segments or have been
allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

The Exceutive management committee is the Chief operating decision maker(CODM) and monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.

Secondary Segment

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and
therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table gives information in terms of provisions of Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108)

: As at/ For the year ended | As at/ For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

| Segment Revenue

a) Capital based business 2,441.06 4,805.00

b) Treasury management 50.34 631.57

c) Business Support Services 776.46 740.13

d) Warehouse services - 55.46

e} Trading in commodities 4,729.50 4,584.77

£ Unall 1 +4-83 2438

Total Income 8,012.17 10,841.31
n Segment Results

a) Capital based business (1,688.75) (852.21)

b} Treasury management (354.52) {79.40)

c) Business Support Services 272.39 88.78

d} Warehouse services - (3.78)

e} Trading in commodities 2.98 1.72

f) Unallocated 14.831 24.41

Loss before taxation (1,753.08) {820.48)

Less : Provision for taxation 215.46 (74.47)

Profit after taxation (1,968.54) (746.01)
m Assets

a) Capital based business 24,225.17 36,407.15

b) Treasury management 178.00 2,745.64

¢} Business Support Services 170.07 106.69

d) Warehouse services - -

e) Trading in commodities - -

f) Unallocated 2,446.32 2,647.29

Total 27,019.56 41,906.77
v Segment Liabilities

a) Capital based business 22,524.21 33,339.87

b} Treasury management 152.97 2,256.87

c) Business Support Services - 0.63

d) Warehouse services 16.82 16.82

e) Trading in commodities - -

f) Unallocated - -

Total 22,694.00 35,614.19
v Capital diture (Including ir ibles under develop )

a) Capital based business 20.69 409.43

b) Treasury management - -

c} Business Support Services 2 g

d) Warehouse services - -

e} Trading in commodities - -

f) Unallocated - -

Total 20.69 409.43

AN
LW
Accoutt
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38 reporting
particiilie As at/ For the year ended | As at/ For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

vi Depreciation and amortisation
a) Capital based business 451.86 357.30
b) Treasury management - 6.33
c) Business Support Services 11.74 45.09
d) Warehouse services - =
e) Trading in commodities B -
f) Unallocated - -
Total 463.60 408.72

vil Significant non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortisation
a) Capital based business 198.83 140.34
b) Treasury management - -
c) Business Support Services - -
d) Warehouse services - (19.69)
e) Trading in commodities - -
f}) Unallocated z =
Total 198.83 120.65
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39 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 - “Related Party Disclosure”:

List of Related Parties as at March 31,2023 is as under:

{A) Names of related parties by whom control is exercised
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, ultimate Holding Company
Edel Finance Company Limited, Holding Company

{B} Entities which are controlled by the Company
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited
Allium Finance Private Limited

{C}) Associate with whom the Company has transactions
ECap Securities and Investments Limited (Formerly known as Ecap Equities Limited)

(D) Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions
ECL Finance Limited
Edelcap Securities Limited
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)
Edel Investments Limited
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited
Edelgive Foundation
Edelweiss International Singapore Pte Limited

tdetwetssRetaitFmarcetmited

Zuno General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company
Limited)

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP

Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund

India Credit Investment Fund 1|

Sekura India Management Limited

(E) Associate of Ultimate holding company (EFSL) with whom the Company has transactions {upto March 30, 2023)

Nuvama Asset Management Limited (formerly known as ESL Securities Limited)

Nuvama Capital Services (IFSC) Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited)
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Capital Services Limited)
Nuvama Wealth.and Investment Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited

(F) Key Management Personnel
Mr. Ravindra Dhobale (Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f. August 2, 2022)
Mr. Chirag Dilipkumar Shah (Company Secretary) (w.e.f. May 27, 2022)
Ms. Shailly Kedia (Company Secretary) (Resigned w.e.f. April 8, 2022)

{G) Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Nikhil Johari
Mr. Santosh Dadheech
Ms. Ananya Suneja

(H) Independent Directors
Dr. Vinod Juneja
Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah (upto August 31, 2022)
Mr. Bharat Bakshi {w.e.f. May 27,2022)
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Related Parties (Continued)

{1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

{Rs. in Millians)
Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Capital account transactions during the year
Equity shares Issued to Edel Finance Company Limited Fi 2,501.20
Non-Cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Share issued to |Edel Finance Company Limited 20.00 =
Redemption of Preference Share issued Edel Finance Company Limited 10.00 -
Ecap Equities Limited 10.00 5
Loans taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 8,320.00 36,891.63
ECL Finance Limited 1,590.00 2
Edel Finance Company Limited 2,620.70 45.00
Edel Investments Limited 1,866.40 15,308.88
Allium Finance Private Limited 83.50 376.02
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 250.00 11,530.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,079.80 4,963.72
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 6,200.00
Limited) 4:400.00
Ecap Equities Limited 5,353.35 29,086.73
Loans repaid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 13,559.23 29,749.48
ECL Finance Limited 1,590.00 %
Edel Finance Company Limited 949.20 5051
Edel Investments Limited 2,551.90 14,762.21
Allium Finance Private Limited 164.22 322.88
Securities And Private Limited - 0.40
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 3,720.00 8,060.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 2,024.26 4,019.26
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 6,200.00
Limited) 4,400.00
Ecap Equities Limited 3,893.25 15,915.97
Loans given to ECL Finance Limited + 10,337 86
Edel Finance Company Limited 4,786.80 731211
Edel Investments Limited = 5,609 50
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,428.58 784.48
Global Wealth Limited 156.44 1,125.60
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 1,000.00 -
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 778.50 5,009.17
' + + a a 33066
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 6.07 5.69
Ecap Equities Limited 6,881.57 98,431.05
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 5,613.91 7,316.35
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1,750.00 1,740.00
Allium Finance Private Limited - 46.23
Loans repaid by €CL Finance Limited 780.00 9,557.86
Edel Finance Company Limited 7,419.40 9,679.51
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,428.58 784.48
Edel Investments Limited = 5,609.50
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 9,216.50 9,190.96
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 156.44 1,400.06
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1,750.00 1,740.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 1,000.00 ¥
Securities And Private Limited 2,322.76 3,489.19
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 330.00 119
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 20.53 2.20
Ecap Equities Limited 7,280.75 95,373.10
Allium Finance Private Limited - 46.23
Purchase of Security from ECL Finance Limited = 2,147.00
Investments in funds sold to ECL Finance Limited 513.98 #
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1,671.49 =
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited & 111.93
Investments in equity shares sold to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited = 0.10
Investments in equity shares sold to Securities And 1ts Private Limited 495.28 1,451.97
[ in C v Convertible of Ecap Equities Limited E 2,000.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited e 5,750.00
Withdrawal of capital from partnership firm Edelweiss Resolution Advisors LLP 0.13 0.24
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP - 7.02
Investments in Other India Credit Investment fund 11 2,172.71 238.33
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund - 10.09
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund * 5.83
Principal Repayment from fund India Credit Investment Fund Il 779.63
India Credit Investment Fund |
Margin placed with Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 0.55 880.10
Edel Investments Limited 4.75 -
Margin withdrawn from Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 2.05 880.10




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Related Parties (Continued)

(1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Rs. in Millions)

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Edel Investments Limited 4.75 5.42
Purchase of fixed assets from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.00 0.07
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited = 0.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited g 0.03
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited w 0.14
ECL Finance Limited 0.12 0.07
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.01 2
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance “
Uimited) 0.00
Ecap Equities Limited o 0.03
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited = 1.35
Edel investments Limited 0.14 0.00
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.28 0.03
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited , 0.00
EdelGive Foundation = 0.04
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited & 0.00
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited a 0.00
Sale of fixed assets to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.00 0.02
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited i 0.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited = 0.05
Edelcap Securities Limited i 0.05
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited e 0.11
ECL Finance Limited - 1.12
ZUNOQ General insurance Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance w
Company Limited 131
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 2 0.02
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited o 0.04
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited w 0.01
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance -
Limited) 9.07
Ecap Equities Limited . 0.07
Retail Finance Limited » 0.02
EdelGive Foundation 7 0.01
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited = 0.00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.00
Edel Investments Limited 0.00 0.03
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited & 0.01
Nuvama Asset Management Limited - 0.00
Purchase/subscription of debentures from Ecap Equities Limited - 2,750.00
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 53.35 5
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance -
Limited) 94.78
Sale of Debentures to ECL Finance Limited 1,889.04 -
Edel Investments Limited " 3,850.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 5 19.12
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited % 115.88
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 166.89 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 373.85 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 2,130.43 -
Issuance of debentures to Ecap Equities Limited 5,500.00 -
Redemption of debentures held in Ecap Equities Limited 1,076.63 5,159.28
ECL Finance Limited o 1,200.00
Redemption of debentures held by Ecap Equities Limited 4,440.10
Edelweiss Investment Adwviser Limited B805.44 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 355.56 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 8.30 =
Security deposit received from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited - 7.33
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited = 84.44
Secunity deposit repaid to Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 75.00
Ecap Equities Limited = 100.00
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance -
Limited) 100.00
ECL Finance Limited - 500.00
Remuneration/Professional fee paid to Santosh Dadheech # 9.83
Manoj Sharma - 297
Ananya Suneja = 20.60
Chirag Shah 1.06
Shailly Kedia 0.06 “
Nikhil Johari 15.25 2
Director Sitting Fees Kunnasagaran Chinniah 0.14 0.46
Bharat Bakshi 0.30 7
Vinod Juneja 0.34 0.34
Income
Business support service charges from ECL Finance Limited 68.31 72.36

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 352 297




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Related Parties (Continued})

23 (continued)
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{I} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Rs. in Millions)
Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 244.00 268.18
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 53.53
Limited) 48.61
|Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.90 0.76
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 0.14 0.26
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 35.09 28.20
Edel Finance Company Limited 271 0.76
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 46.76 43.67
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.07 0.24
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 6.17 3.46
ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance 53.88
Company Limited) 43.98
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 4.89 3.81
Edelcap Securities Limited 65.44 56.05
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.71 0.87
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.08 0.24
Edel Investments Limited 5.45 1.57
Edelweiss International (Singapore} Pte. Limited 7.89 6.29
Ecap Equities Limited 13.96 17.15
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 72.62 68.00
EdelGive Foundation 8.15 5.57
Edelweiss investment Adviser Limited 1.85 0.02
Securities And Private Limited 44.79 43.01
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited 0.01 0.01
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 0.03 004
Sekura India Management Limited 0.50 -
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 0.00 -
Corporate Guarantee Commission Income Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 0.03
Limited) 0.02
ECL Finance Limited 0.02 0.02
Edel Finance Company Limited 6.82 6.93
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.00 0.00
Rating Support Fees Income Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.09
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited & 0.03
Nuvama Wealth Finance timited 2 0.13
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance ®
Limited) 0.13
ECL Finance Limited 088
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 0.02
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 0.03
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.07
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.08
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited " 0.06
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited ~ 0.00
Ecap Equities Limited = 002
Interest income on debentures (Including CCD) ECL Finance Limited 143.47 239.31
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.58 1.55
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1.62 1.64
Edel Finance Company Limited 2.64 2.64
Ecap Equities Limited 15.14 25.13
Interest income on Nifty Linked Debentures Ecap Equities Limited 269.59 838.39
Interest income on loan from ECL Finance Limited 831 193.45
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 228.93
Allium Finance Private Limited 0.12
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 929.91 994.95
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 11.36 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 30.37 130
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 33.66 735
Edel Investments Limited = 10.31
Global Wealth Limited 4.97 54.99
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 2.25 4.84
Ecap Equities Limited 70.76 1,195.97
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 1.43 161
Securities And Private Limited 70.69 65.72
Edel Finance Company Limited 151.55 340.63
Interest income on margin placed with Nuvama Clearing Services Limited z 0.16
Share of Profit in LLP Resolution Advisars LLP (Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP) 0.03 -
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP - 4.19
Share of loss from fund Edelwerss Muiti Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.05 =
Edelwess Resolution Advisors LLP 0.04
Rental income from ECL Finance Limited 12.04 11.78
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 28.68 26.89
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 12.57 12.93
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited 1.03 0.20
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 71.79 45.18
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 64.31 44.73
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 98.14 93.72
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
{Currency : indian rupees in millions)

Related Parties (Continued)

{1} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Rs. in Millions})

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Nido Home Finance Limited {(Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 0.03
Limited) 2
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.17 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 20.83 14.01
Edel Investments Limited 18.72 2525
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 13.87 24.96
Ecap Equities Limited 4.42 2.28
EdelGive Foundation 1.18 112
Nuvama Asset Management Limited 0.01 -
Investment management support service from Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited 8.20 1.69
Cost reimbursements recovered from ECL Finance Limited 1.30 279
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 091 1.61
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 4.81 12.56
Nuvama Wealth and tnvestment Limited 0.06 284
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 2.85 1.74
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 9.84 2.83
Edelcap Securities Limited 1.14 4.27
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 001
Limited) 100
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.01 0.50
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 5 0.09
Edel Investments Limited 2.05 1.93
ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance 2.27
Company Limited) 0.59
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited ¥ 4.95
Ecap Equities Limited 0.41 057
EdelGive Foundation 0.05 0.08
Edel Finance Company Limited B 0.01
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.80 118
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 267 191
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.00 0.38
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited £ 0.00
Nuvarma Asset Management Limited 0.01 0.09
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited e 0.00
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited & 0.15
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 0.00 .
+ distrib # Fand motr-Eredit Fomd
Edelweiss Value & Growth Fund # 283.76
Expenses
Clearing expenses to Nuvama Clearing Services Limited 0.45 E
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 0.00 -
Cost reimbursement to Edelwetss Financial Services Limited * 816
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited = 0.00
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited n 0.62
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Adwisors Limited 13.92 1154
Ecap Equities Limited 343 0.01
Edelcap Securities Limited 3.01 0.01
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited 0.08 -
ECL Finance Limited 14.66 98.29
Securities And Private Limited d 0.00
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited % 0.60
Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. - 0.01
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 0.02
Limited) 0.16
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 011
EdelGive Foundation el 0.00
Edel Investments Limited 1.67 &
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.12 -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.25 -
fees paid to ECL Finance Limited 117.60 -




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued}

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Related Parties (Continued}

{1) Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Rs. in Miflions)
Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Brokerage and commission expenses Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 242
ECL Finance Limited 0.00
Ecap Equities Limited 0.00
Edel Investments Limited 0.73 *
Interest expenses on loans from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1,009.00 2,005.73
Edel Finance Company Limited 25.03 1.13
ECL Finance Limited 28.13 4
Edelcap Securities Limited 35.14 47.36
Edel Investments Limited 62.52 79.29
Allium Finance Private Limited 12.75 10.14
Ecap Equities Limited 19.78 267.10
Securities And Private Limited = 0.02
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 145.97 19135
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 122.70
Limited) 93.46
Interest expenses on Security deposit ECL Finance Limited - 58.68
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance —
Limited) 1174
Interest expenses on debentures Edelcap Securities Limited 76.35 7437
Ecap Equities Limited 477.56 400.44
Edel Investments Limited 0.44 166.01
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance -
Limited) 13.21
Securities And Private Limited % 12.40
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 138 24.70
Interest on CCD Edel Finance Company Limited 171 0.90
Interest / dividend on preference shares ECL Finance Limited 81.64 74.98
Ecap Equities Limited 110.17 103.50
Interest Exps - 1CD Nuvama Wealth Management Limited 271 3
Rating fees to and Bank guarantee commission Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 0.00
Limited) *
Balances with related parties as on 31 March 2023 - (Assets]
Accrued interest income on loans given Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 55.82 96.76
Global Wealth 8! Limited = 6.23
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited E 0.15
ECap Securities And [nvestments Limited 5.50
Securities And ts Private Limited P 7.38
Ecap Equities Limited 017 130.81
Edel Investments Limited 0.00 0.00
Edel Finance Company Limited B 41.82
ECL Finance Limited = 152.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 3.12 363
Interest receivable on debentures from Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.03 0.04
Edel Finance Company Limited 1.78 1.78
Ecap Equities Limited - 15.40
Investment in Partnership Firm Edelweiss Resolution Advisors LLP % 0.10
Edelweiss Mult: Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.05
Investments in equity shares in Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 2,825.00
Limited) 2,829.00
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 38.86 38.86
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 1,000.10 1,000.10
Allium Finance Private Limited 67.35 21.18
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited # 11035
Investments in preference shares in Allium Finance Private Limited 858.92 839.74
Investment in others Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund 2 314.09
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund w 199.80
India Credit Investment Fund 1l 2,611.79 1,507.03
Partner's current account - receivable from Edelweiss Resolution Advisors LLP = 032
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Adwvisors LLP 3.11 3.18
Partner's capital account - receivable from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.05 -
I in deb {Including CCD) ECL Finance Limited s 2,12060
Ecap Equities Limited 6,600.59 6,600.36
Edelwerss Investment Adviser Limited 5,750.42 5,750.48

TN
0rn
/AR i lr

I




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Related Parties (Continued}

(1) Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Rs. in Millions)

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Trade receivables from Edel Finance Company Limited 2.17 463
Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited 3.38 173
EdelGive Foundation 1.62 0.33
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited 0.00 0.00
|Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds Management pvt Ltd - 0.00
Edel Investments Limited 2.30 1.87
Ecap Equities Limited 2.91 0.22
Edelcap Securities Limited 16.33 6.28
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 25.11 3.78
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 3.45 2.79
Edehweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 18.10 6.73
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 11.55 5.60
ZUNO General Insurance Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance 2.44
Company Limited) 8.56
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 11.03
Limited) 20.43
Edelwerss Retail Finance Limited 0.36 0.30
Securities And Private Limited 8.60 5.32
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 10.54 7.14
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.02 0.01
ECL Finance Lirnited 35.35 22.30
Global Wealth Limited 0.05 B
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.32 -
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 0.00 -
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.00 -
Allium Finance Private Limited 0.01
Other Receivable ECL Finance Limited 0.00
ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance 0.00
Company Limited) 0.12
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.58 &
Comtrade Commadities Services Limited 0.00 -
Edel Investments Limited 0.09
Ecap Equities Limited 156.20 0.00
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.02 0.06
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1.40 -
Allium Finance Private Limited 0.09 0.00
EdelGive Foundation 0.64 0.56
Edelvalue Partners - -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited E 0.03
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 0.00
Limited) 0.00
{Edelweiss Securities Trading and Management Pvt. Ltd. - Dahlia 0.00
Securities And Private Limited 0.00
Comtrade Commadities Services Limited 0.00 -
Loans and advances given to Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 5,889.72 9,492.31
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220.00 330.00
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 5 14.46
Ecap Equities Limited e 399.18
Securities And ts Private Limited = 1,544.26
Edel Finance Company Limited o 2,632.60
ECL Finance Limited = 780.00
Stock in trade/ Nifty Linked Debentures Ecap Equities Limited 123.76 3.00
Non convertible debentures Edelweiss Retall Finance Limited 10.47 18.61
Edel Finance Company Limited 24.94 28.07
Ecap Equities Limited - 555.97
Balances with related parties as on 31 March 2023 - (Liabilities)
Subordinated Preference Shares Edel Finance Company Limited 20.00 918.36
Ecap Equities Limited 406.68 1,296.51
Accrued interest expense on loans taken from ECL Finance Limited 0.87 0.24
Allium Finance Private Limited % 0.75
Edel Investments Limited 183 7.29
Edel Finance Company Limited 7.72 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited = 20.88
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 50.63 244.11
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance -
Limited) 9.26
Ecap Equities Limited 4.74 121.11
Edelcap Securities Limited “ 55
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.00
Interest Payable-CCD Edel Finance Company Limited 0.90 -
Non convertible debentures held by Edel Investments Limited # 300.82
Ecap Equities Limited 4,131.00 4,064.34
Edelcap Securities Limited 1,369.00 350.53
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited * 200.00
Adviser Limited E 790.81




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Related Parties (Continued})

(I} Transaction and Balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Rs. in Millions)

Particulars Name of related parties 2022-23 2021-22
Interest Payable an Debenture Edel Investments Limited - 0.53
Ecap Equities Limited 113.18 70.66
Edelcap Securities imited 17.63 4.62
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited E 14.06
Rental deposits received from Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 50.00 50.00
|Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 17.72 -
Trade payables to {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.05 -
EC Global Limited @ 0.02
ECL Finance Limited 24.47 -
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 0.01 0.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte. Limited ¥ 0.14
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.01
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.21 ¥
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.51
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 0.00 -
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 0.11
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 8.53 =
Edelweiss Retal Finance Limited 0.03 5
Edelvalue Partners 0.00 =
Other Payable Edelweiss Financial Services Limited s 0.81
Edel Finance Company Limited . 0.04
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 0.87 0.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.46 0.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited ! 0.01
EdeiGive Foundation 0.24 >
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 0.09 -
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 0.00
Limited) &
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 12.11 e
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 0.87 %
Edel Investments Limited 0.75
ECL Finance Limited 0.01 =
Ecap Equities Limited 0.61 2
Sekura India Management Limited . 0.01 #
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.01 -
Loans taken from Allium Finance Private Limited - 80.72
E£del Finance Company Limited 1,671.50 =
Edel Investments Limited s 685.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 4,100.00 9,338.23
Edelcap Securities Limited % 944.46
Ecap Equities Limited 1,460.10 %
Off balance sheet item
Corporate guarantee given for Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance 1,353.25
Limited) 1,612.82
ECL Finance Limited 149.30 249.09
Edel Finance Company Limited 701.80 726 55
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 2 3249
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 3,290.60 %
Corporate guarantee taken from Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance -
Limited) 950.00

0.00 indicates amounts less than Rs. 0.01 millions




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

40  Investments in partnership firms:

Particulars Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP

As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
Total capital of partnership firm Rs. 0.10 millions | Rs. 0.10 millions
Name of partners Share in capital and share in profit/loss
Ecap Equities Limited {formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 50.00% | 50.00%
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 50.00% I 50.00%

Particulars Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP

As at 31st March 2023 I As at 31st March 2022
Total capital of partnership firm Rs. 0.10 millions [ Rs. 0.10 millions
Name of partners Share in capital and share in profit/loss
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 99.97% 99.97%
Ecap Equities Limited (formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 0.01% 0.01%
Ram Setia 0.01% 0.01%
Mahindra Banjger 0.01% 0.01%




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

41 Contingent liabilities and commitments :
41.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments

a) Taxation matters in respect of which appeal is pending Rs. 248.10 million {Previous year: Rs. 409.60 million).

b) The Company has given composite corporate guarantee to bank for Rs. 585.50 millions (Previous year: Rs. 569.98 millions) for
availing fund based Banking facilities by its subsidiary/fellow Subsidiary Companies i.e. Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly
known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited), ECL Finance Limited and Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited.

With reference Deed of Guarantee agreement between the Company and the Lender, the liability of the Company is lower of
value of immovable properties of the Company or outstanding respective facilities of the respective Group Companies. The charge
created on immovable properties of the Company amounting to Rs. 585.50 millions { Previous year: Rs. 569.98 million).

c) Corporate gaurantee given by the company to the bank for Rs.917.05 millions (Previous year: Rs.1,324.42 millions) for availing
Fund based Banking facilities by its subsidiary Company Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited.

d) The Company has given guarantee of Rs. 701.80 millions (Previous year Rs.726.55 millions) on behalf of Edel Finance Company
Limited ('EFCL'),a holding company, which has sold certain financial assets to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
('EARC'), another group company. The terms of sale required any Edelweiss group company to provide EARC with unconditional
and irrevocable guarantee for securing the guaranteed obligation of EFCL.

e) The Company has provided Corporate Guarantee to VISTRA ITCL (India) Limited for borrowings from BPEA Credit India Fund Il
(‘Barings’) amounting to Rs. 3,290.60 million on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary Edelweiss Investment Advisors Ltd (EIAL) in
respect of credit facilities obtained by EIAL.

f} Undrawn Commitments for AIF funds Rs. 384.95 million (Previous Year Rs. 4,743.14 million)

g) The company has provided bank guarantees amounting to Rs.319.23 millions ( Previous year: Rs 319.23 millions).

h) Certain assets amounting to Rs. Nil (Rs. 1284.40 millions were sold to alternative assets funds by the fellow subsidiary NBFCs. The
Company has, vide a put agreement dated 31 July 2021, has guaranteed / undertaken to purchase these financial assets
amounting to Rs. 1284.40 million on occurrence of certain trigger event as per the agreement.

The Company's pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with Income Tax,
Excise, Custom, Sales/VAT tax / GST and other authorities. The Comapany has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and
has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in the financial
statements.The amount of provisions / contingent liabilities is based on management’s estimate, and no significant liability is expected
to arise out of the same.

The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income
under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Company has filed appeal/s and is
defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors,
Company is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote.

41.2 The Income Tax Authorities {" the Department” ) had conducted a search under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on the
premises of the Company during March 2023. The Company had provided the requisite details which were sought by the income tax
authorities during the course of the search. Subsequently, the Company has received summons under section 131 (1A) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 seeking certain data/information, which the Company is in the process of responding. The Company confirms that
neither the Department has raised any tax demand nor the Company has admitted any tax liability. Further, no proceeding or
assessment orders have been issued post the search conducted by the Department. While uncertainty exists regarding the outcome of
the proceedings by the Department, the Company is extending its full cooperation with the concerned income tax authorities and
based on current internal assessment management is of the view that this will not have any impact on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

41.3 During the year, Company has provided Corporate Guarantee to BPEA Credit india Fund Ill (‘Barings’) amounting to Rs. 3,650.00
Millions on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary Edelweiss Investment Advisors Ltd (EIAL) in respect of credit facilities obtained by
EIAL. Such guarantees given during the year were approved by the Operations Committee on August 10, 2022 and March 21, 2023.
Such credit facilities of EIAL are secured by EIAL’s investments in Participative Non-Convertible Debentures (PNCD) of Rs. 2,040.00
millions issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company (EARC), a fellow subsidiary, and mortgage of a property in favour of EIAL
by Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly Edel Land Limited), a fellow subsidiary. As at 31 March 2023 we confirm that total guarantee of Rs.
5,495.00 millions has not been invoked by various ultimate lenders and hence there is no impact required to be recorded in the books
of the Company.
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Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company:

a)

e)

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 59.24 millions (Previous year: Rs. 57.15 millions) have been pledged with banks for
obtaining the bank guarantee provided to VAT autharities for meeting statutory requirements.

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 6.60 millions (Previous year: Rs.16.50 millions) have been pledged with bank for
obtaining the bank guarantee provided to Customs authorities for meeting statutory requirements.

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 13.09 millions (Previous year: Rs. 14.31 millions) have been pledged with bank for
obtaining the bank guarantee provided to various mandis for margin and license requirements.

Fixed deposits aggregating to Rs.322.53 millions (Previous year: Rs. 322.83 millions) have been pledged with banks for
securing bank Guarantee.

Interest accrued on above Fixed deposits Rs. 21.97 millions {Previous year: Rs. 1.23 millions) have been pledged with
banks.
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43 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share (EPS} is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
In accordance with Ind AS- 33 — "Earnings Per Share" prescribed by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, the
computation of earnings per share is set out below:

2022-23 2021-22
Profit /{loss) for the year {(1,968.54) (746.01)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 46,535,367 39,775,367
Number of Shares issued during the year s 6,760,000
Compulsory Convertible Debenture and Preference share 25,749,955 25,749,955
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 72,285,322 72,285,322
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS 72,285,322 65,562,363
Number of dilutive potential equity shares * =
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 72,285,322 65,562,363
Earnings per share (EPS) (Face value Re.1 each)
Basic earnings share (in Rs) (27.23) (11.38)
Dilutive earning per share (in Rs)* (27.23) (11.38)
*The weighted average number of shares takes into account 25,749,955 equity shares to be converted on
issuance of compulsorily convertible debentures (“CCD”) & compulsorily convertible preference shares (“CCPS”)

44 Capital commitments (to the extent not provided for):

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided

for is Rs. 2.04 millions (Previous year: Rs. 1.95 millions).
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45 Leases:-

1) This note provides information for Right of use assets where the company is a lessee. Company has not given any property on lease.
Carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements

- As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance as at 2.58 8.37
Addition / disposal during year 0.00 (4.69)
Amortisation for the year {1.67) (1.09)
Closing balance as at 0.92 2.59

2) This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee.
Carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements

. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance as at 3.07 18.41
Addition / disposal during year (2.19) (15.74)
Accretion of interest 0.26 0.40
Closing balance as at 1.14 3.07

3) The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases.

For the year ended| For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation on ROU of assets 1.67 1.09
Interest cost 0.26 0.40

Total amount recognised in the

statement of profit and loss 183 142

4) This note provides information for total cash outflow on account of leases.

Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22
Cash outflow of long term leases 0.26 0.40
5) This note provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscounted basis.
Particular
; As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year - -
1-3 years 1.14 3.07
3-5years = -
More than 5 years N N
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46 Retirement benefit plan

A) Defined contribution plan {Provident fund and National Pension Scheme):

Rs.17.38 million (Previous year: Rs. 20.60 million) is recognised as expense and included in "Employee benefit expense" in the statement of
profit and loss

B) Defined benefit plan (Gratuity):

The following tables summarise the components of the net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded and
unfunded status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

Statement of profit and loss

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

2022-23 2021-22
Current service cost 5.01 5.14
Interest on defined benefit obligation (1.86) (2.00)
Total included in 'Employee benefits expense' 3.15 3.14
Movement in Other Comprehensive Income:

2022-23 2021-22
Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain (20.33) 7.49
Re-measurements on define benefit obligation (DBO)
a. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from changes in financial assumptions 2.23 121
b. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from experience over the past year (0.75) (3.38)
c. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from changes in demographic assumptions - (1.62)
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net (2.36)
defined benefit liability/ (asset) ’ 2.25
Re-measurements on Asset Ceiling
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (3.30) (26.28)
{asset)
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain {24.52) (20.33)

Balance sheet

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation (DBO) :

2022-23 2021-22
Present value of DBO at the beginning of the year 37.42 53.23
Transfer in / (Out) (2.92} (7.39)
Interest cost 2.04 2.29
Current service cost 5.01 5.14
Benefits paid (4.22) (19.63)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (1.48) 3.79
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 35.85 37.43
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:

2022-23 2021-22
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 92.61 86.07
Contributions by Employer 4.22 19.63
Benefits paid (4.22) (19.63)
Interest income 5.45 4.29
Return on plan asset excluding amount included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/ (asset) 2.36) 2.25
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 95.69 92.61
Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

2022-23 2021-22
Present Value of DBO 35.85 37.43
Fair Value of Plan Assets 95.69 92,61
Net Liability/ (Asset) (59.84) (55.16)
Funded Status [Surplus/ {Deficit)] 59.84 55.16
Less: Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to asset ceiling] 31.13 26.28
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet 28.71 28.89

Of Which, Short term Liability
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: {Gain)/ Loss 0.75 3.38
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46 Retirement benefit plan {Continued)
B} Defined benefit plan (Gratuity) (Continued):

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of Defined Benfefit Obligat 35.85 37.43 53.23 74.96 68.59
Fair value of plan assets at the end of
the year 95.69 92.61 86.07 70.80 63.96
Net Liability / {Assets) {59.84) (55.16}) (32.84) 4.16 4.63
Less: Effect of limiting net assets to asset
ceiling 31.13 26.28 - - -
Liability / (Assets) recognised in the bala (28.71) {(28.89) (32.84) 4.16 4.63
Experience adjustments:
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
On plan liabilities: loss / (gain) 0.75 3.38 (6.10) 4.76 533
On plan assets: gain / {loss} - - - - -
Estimated contribution for next year - - - 4.00 4.50
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:
2022-23 2021-22
Discount rate 7.10% 5.90%
Salary escalation 7% 7%
Employees attrition rate 16% 16%
Expected return on plan asset 5.90% 5.00%

Mortality Rate

IALM 2012-14 (Ultimate)

IALM 2012-14 (Ultimate)

Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets 2022-23 2021-22
Investment Funds with Insurance Company and Cash 96.2% 96.0%
Cash and cash equivalents 3.8% 4.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%
DBO increases / (decreases) by 2022-23 2021-22
Increase of 1% in Salary Growth Rate 1.66 1.90
Decrease of 1% in Salary Growth Rate (1.58) (1.75)
Iincrease of 1% in Discount Rate (1.57) {1.75)
Decrease of 1% in Discount Rate 1.68 1.94
Increase of 1% in Attrition Rate 0.01 (0.09)
Decrease of 1% in Attrition Rate (0.01) 0.10
Mortality (Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) Negligible 2.00
Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 3 years) Negligible 6.00

47 Employee Stock Option Plans

The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”)) has Employee Stock Option Plans and Stock Appreciation Rights Plans
(SAR) in force. Based on such ESOP/SAR schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would
vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options.
The company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee benefit expense. Current year charge of Rs.3.68
millions (previous year release of Rs. 8.96 millions).

A 1O A Y
.'?L Vio Al
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48 Cost sharing and other recoveries

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like common senior management
compensation cost, Group Mediclaim,etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and certain subsidiaries including the company. This cost so
expensed is reimbursed by the company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other companies, actual identifications
etc. On the same lines, costs like rent, electricity charges incurred by the company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries and associate companies are
recovered as reimbursement by the company from the subsidiaries and associate companies on similar basis. Accordingly, and as identified by the
management, the expenditure heads in note 34 and 36 include reimbursements paid and are net of the reimbursements received based on the
management’s best estimate.

As per the master service agreement, the company provides necessary support for activities relating to information technology, human resource,
administrative, finance and operations related services to holding company, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and associate companies. The income in

note 28 as Business support services income relates to amount recovered from these entities for the said services.

Other recoveries:

The income in note 31 relates to amount recovered from the holding company, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, for occupying office premises in the

company’s building.

Disclosure of loans and advances pursuant to regulation 53(f}) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing obligations and

= disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Maximum Maximum
Amount Amount
outstanding St i outstanding Bevviboefs
dnring the year dnring the year
loan to Holding Company & Subsidiary
a)Edel Finance Company Limited - 6,838.90 2,632.60 6,585.00
b) EC Commodity Limited - - - 4,198.82
c)Edelweiss Comtrade Limited - 18.93 14.46 14.51
d}Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited* 5,889.72 10,553.99 9,492.31 12,961.22
e}Allium Finance Private Limited - - - 46.23
f)Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220.00 330.00 - -
g)Ecap Equities Limited {formerly known as Edel Land Limited) - 2,521.68 -
h)Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 121.44 - -
i}Edelwiess Securities and Investment Private Limited - 1,544.26 - -
JJECL Finance Limited - 780.00 - -
k)Edelcap Securities Limited - 924.58 - -
1) Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss
I e 1,000.00 - -
Broking Limited)
m) Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 1,750.00 - -
loan from Holding Company & Subsidiary
a)Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 4,100.00 10,929.23 9,339.23 22,885.95
b)Edel Finance Company Limited - 50.51
c)Allium Finance Private Limited - 160.32 80.72 227.48
d) Nido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance
Limited) - 2,100.00
e)Ecap Equities Limited (formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 1,460.10 1,460.10
f)Edel Investments Limited - 1,146.20
g)Edelcap Securities Limited 1,156.16
h)Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 2,950.00
i)ECL Finance Limited 1,590.00
j)Edel Finance Company Limited 1,671.50 1,671.50

*Refer note no 60 Credit Quality of loans.
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50 Details of dues to mfcro, small and medium enterprises:
Trade Payables includes Rs Nil (Previous year: Rs.2.07 million) payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 0.03 million interest has been paid by the Company during the year (Previous year: Nil) to

“Suppliers” registered under this act. The afore mentioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with
suppliers with regard to applicability under the said act.

51 Corporate social responsibility (CSR):
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013:

i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year was Rs. Nil millions (Financial Year 2021-22 Rs. Nil millions)

i) Amount spent during the year on:

Yet to be paid in

cash
Constructions / acquisition of any assets - -

On purpose other than (i) above R .

Particulars In cash Total

i) Shortfall at the end of the year was Rs. Nil millions (Financial Year 2021-22 Rs. Nil millions)

iv) Total of previous years shortfall was Rs.Nil millions (Financial Year 2021-22 Rs. Nil millions)
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A)

B)

q

Risk Management framework

Governance framework

The primary objective of the Comapny's risk and financial management framework is to protect the company's shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of
financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. The management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management
systems in place.

Approach to capital management

Company objectives when managing capital, are to (a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakeholders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Company manitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

Particular As at 31st March 2023 | As at 31st March 2022

Total Debt 22,099.11 35,087.06

Equity 4,325.56 6,292.58

Net Debt to Equity. 5.11 5.58
Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading te a financial loss, The Company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and financial instruments.

The company’s management policy is to closely monitor creditworthiness of counterparties by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements on regular basis.
The company’s financial assets subject to the expected credit loss model within Ind AS 109 are short-term trade and other receivables and financial instruments. Company applies the
expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss. Expected credit loss allowance in respect of receivables is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account

historical credit loss experience.

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of defauit and loss given default. The company has devised an internal model to evaluate the probability of
default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the financial instruments are classified into various stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing

High grade Odpd and 1 to 30 dpd* Stagel
Standard grade 31 to 90 dpd* Stage It
Non-performing

Individually impaired 90+ dpd* Stage lll

* dpd indicates days past due.

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR}

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due. Classification
of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant
increase in credit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Comapny
also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the
customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Probability of Default

Historical dpd data is used to calculate historic default rates for each portfolio. This is done by using transition matrix which are calculated by assessing the transition from the one dpd
state to the default dpd state 12 months from the cohort date.

Loss Given Default {LGD)

The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default {LGD) has been computed with workout methodology. Workout LGD is widely considered to be the most
flexible, transparent and logical approach to build an LGD model. Alang with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate future recoveries in
LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part of the workout process) on a particular facility, as a percentage of
balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding at NPA was assessed, which went into the
denominator of the LGD calculation. LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Default (EAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default {EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the
Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are of the nature where the company provides future commitments, in addition to the current
credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount

Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected future drawdown as a proportion of undrawn amount Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has
committed and the drawn credit line While the drawn exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD.
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D)  Liquidity risk and funding management
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of:

1)Possibility that the Company could be required to pay its current laibilities earlier than expected.
fMismatch in maturity profile of assets and liabilities
1I}Delay in receipt of receivables including agency receivables

The Company’s palicy is to satisfy redemption requests by the following means (in decreasing order of priority):
I)Withdrawal of cash deposits

) Disposal of highly liquid assets {i.e. short-term, low-risk debt investments, inventory)

lNEither disposal of other assets or increase of leverage

The Company also has undrawn borrowing facilities amounting to Rs. Nif as on 31 March 2023 {as on 31 March 2022: Rs. 70 millions}

52.1. Analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's non derivatives financial liabilities.Repayments which are subject to notice
are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the company expects that the counterparties will not request repayment on the earliest date it could be
required to pay.

Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities

As at 31-Mar-23

Non-derivative financial lial Upto 6 More than Total
3 months 3to 6 months monthsto1year 1 yearto 3 years 3 years

Trade payables 220.84 - - - - 220.84
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 3,197.30 2,100.00 & 2,000.00 - 7,297.30
Debt securities 1,668.23 2 986.48 6,900.00 4,800.00 14,354.71
Subordinated financial liabilities - 427.10 i 20.00 447.10
Other financial liabilities 163.85 7.08 1.29 163.03 = 335.25
Total undi d derivative fii ial liahiliti 2,052.92 3,631.48 3,087.77 9,083.03 4,800.00 22,655.20

Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities

Non-derivative financial assets Upto 3 B 3to 6 More than Total
months 6 months months to 1 year 1year to 3 years 3 years
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 83.83 10.30 29.10 36.41 341.97 501.61
Stock-in-trade 85.38 1.30 37.33 26.72 RET 178.00
Trade receivables 352.40 - - - # 352.40
Loans B 0.00 236.33 61.33 = 297.66
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - - - - 3,580.57 3,580.57
Investments at amortised cost 6,603.75 - - 2,829.00 6,176.70 15,609.45
OtHeT TITancral assen <. I - " DI 2 59,07
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial assets 7,127.48 11.60 302.76 2,986.93 10,126.51 20,555.28
Commitments Upto 3 Between 3 to Between 6 Betweean More than Total
months 6 months months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years 3 years
Undrawn loan and other cor B - = 384.95 - 384.95
Analysis of non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
As at 31-Mar-22
N ivative fi ial liabiliti Upto 6 More than Total
3 months 3to6months monthsto1year  1yearto 3 years 3 years
Trade payables - 97.19 - - - 97.19
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,293.62 = 5,249.42 9,270.00 = 15,813.04
Debt securities 5,589.87 5 5,019.00 < 6,430.64 17,039.51
Subordinated financial liabilities & - 2,234.50 - 2,234.50
Other financial liabilities 234.81 6.66 1.29 142.00 : 384.76
Total i d derivative fi ial liabiliti 7,118.30 103.85 12,504.21 9,412.00 6,430.64 35,569.00
Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities
Non-derivative financial assets Upto 3 Between 3 to Between 6 Between More than 3 Total
months 6 months maonths to 1 year 1year to 3 years 3 years
Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 119.02 30.97 36.53 335.06 4.06 525.64
Stock-in-trade L 4.29 7.86 556.23 56.61 624.99
Trade receivables - 106.69 81.21 & = 187.90
Loans 441.16 0.92 1,120.08 9,373.34 E 10,935.51 .
Investments at fair value through profit or loss - - - 4,173.20 B 4,173.20
Investments at amortised cost - - - 16,170.64 2,120.59 18,291.23
Other financial assets 4.29 = 8.71 23.75 5 36.75
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial assets 564.47 142.87 1,254.40 30,632.22 2,181.26 34,775.23
Commitments Upto 3 B 3to 6 More than Total
months 6 months months to 1 year 1 year to 3 years 3 years
Undrawn loan and other commitments - - - 4,743.14 - 4,743.14

The net loss of the Company at standalone level for the year ended March 31, 2023 stands at Rs. 1,971.28 millions and for the year ended 31 March 2022 was Rs. 764.11
miltions. Management assessments of stress testing included recoveries from sale of its investments, scheduled recovery from group company receivables, expected
borrowing and future cash flows that will be generated from operations. Basis this expected cumulative assets maturing in the next one year are Rs. 7,470 millions and
cumulative liabilities maturing in the next one year are Rs, 6680 millions. Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (the ‘Ultimate Holding Company’) and Edel Finance Company
Limited {the ‘Holding Company’} have represented that they will continue to provide operating and financial support to the Company and Ultimate Holding Company and
Holding company have sufficient financial resources to provide support as and when necessary.

Further, during FY 2021-22, the Holding Company had infused equity capital amounting to Rs. 2,500 millions into the Company. The Board of Directors have approved the
business plan, the liquidity, asset liability management of the Company and Ultimate Holding Company has also given support letter to the Company in order to meet the
shortfall in its fund requirements over borrowings and other liabilities including loans from other group companies (if any), for a period of not less than 12 months from the
date of financial closure of accounts of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2023. Based on business plan, the liquidity, asset liability management of the Company
and support letter from Ultimate Holding Company, the management believes that the Company will be able to operate as going concern pay its obligations as and when these
become due in the next one year.
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52.2. Analysis of risk concentration

As at 31-Mar-23

Industry analysis - Risk concentration

Components Financial services Others Total

Cash and bank balances 501.61 - 501.61
Derivative financial instrument - - -
Stock in trade 178.01 - 178.01
Trade receivables 352.40 - 352.40
Loans 297.66 - 297.66
investments 19,190.09 - 19,190.09
Other financial assets 35.59 - 35.59
Total 20,555.36 - 20,555.36
Other Commitments 384.95 - 384.95
As at 31-Mar-22

Inrhlcfr\'l :n:l\'lcic Risk concentration

Components Financial services Others Total

Cash and bank balances 525.64 - 525.64
Derivative financial instrument - - -
Stock in trade 624.98 - 624.98
Trade receivables 187.90 - 187.90
Loans 10,935.50 - 10,935.50
Investments 22,464.42 - 22,464.42
Other financial assets 36.75 - 36.75
Total 34,775.20 - 34,775.20
Other Commitments 4,743.17 - 4,743.17
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Collateral held and other credit enhancements

The tables on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset.

Principal type of

Maximum exposure to credit risk {carrying amount before ECL) as at 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 collateral
Financial assets
Cash collateral on securities borrwed and reverse repurchase agreement
Loans:
Retail Loans 13.05 0.92 | No Collateral
Listed Equity shares &
Wholesale loans- Credit Substitutes 583.34 2,721.73 immovable Properties
Inter Corporate deposit 1,069.69 1,069.69 | No Collateral
Group Loans 6,167.56 15,633.97 | No Collateral
Distressed assets
Trade receivables-Secured -
Trade receivables-Others 715.15 549.14 | Unsecured
Debt instruments at amortised cost - 2,126.26 | No Collateral
Other Financial Assets 35.62 36.75 | No Collateral
Total financial assets at amortised cost 8,584.42 22,138.46
Financial assets at FVTPL Stock in trade- except MF 178.00 624.98 | No Collateral
Total financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 178.00 624.98
Total Financial assets 8,762.42 22,763.44
Financial guarantee contracts 387.00 2,620.95 | No Collateral
Other commitments {max exposure) 387.00 2,620.95
Total 9,149.42 25,384.39
Il Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:
Maximum exposure to
credit risk (carrying
31-Mar-23 amount-before-ECL) A iated-ECL Cakpging Eaievalua-ofcoll }
Financial assets
Loans:
Wholesale loans 583.34 532.82 50.52 50.52
Inter Corporate deposit 1,069.69 1,069.69 0.00 =
Group Loans 5,945.54 5,934.73 10.81 &
Total financial assets
at amortised cost 7,598.57 7,537.24 61.33 50.52
Loan commitments - - - =
Total 7,598.57 7,537.24 61.32 50.52

Maximum exposure to
credit risk {carrying

31-Mar-22 amount before ECL) Associated ECL Carrying amount Fair value of collateral
Financial assets

Loans:

Wholesale loans 1,404.15 1,289.93 114.22 114.22
Inter Corporate deposit 1,069.69 1,069.69 =
Group Loans .

Total financial assets

at amortised cost 2,473.84 2,359.62 114.22 114.22
Loan commitments - - s 5
Total 2,473.84 2,359.63 114.22 114.22




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

54 Market risk

Market risk is the risk which can affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments due to adverse movements in market prices of instrument due
to interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit spreads. The objective of the Comapny's market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters. The Company separates its exposure to market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios.

Market the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
equity prices. Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non—-trading portfolios and manages each of thase portfolios separately.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Company is not exposed to
interest rate risk as it does not trade in Interest Rate Derivatives and does not have any loans having variable interest rates.

{ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arise majorly on account of foreign
currency borrowings.

There is no currency exposuer in F.Y. 2022-23 and F.Y. 2021-22.

{iii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual investment in equity share
prices.

There is no Equity price risk in F.Y. 2022-23 and F.Y. 2021-22.

(iv) Other price risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of market prices other than equity and
index prices.

2022-23
Impact on Effect on profit before Effect on profit
Increase in price (%) tax Effect on Equity Decrease in price (%) |before tax Effect on Equity
Debt Securities 5% 8.90 8.90 5% (8.90) (8.90)
2021-22
Impact on Effect on profit before Effect on profit
Increase in price (%) tax Effect on Equity Decrease in price (%) |before tax Effect on Equity
Debt Securities 5% 31.25 31.25 5% (31.25) (31.25)
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55  Fair Value Measurement

a) Valuation Principles :
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous} market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price}, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation technigues.

b}  Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy
The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurement is categorised.
Particulars 31-Mar-23

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments (assets)
Exchange-traded derivatives - - - -
OTC derivatives - - = =
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures issued < st = =
Total derivative financial instruments [assets) - - - -
Stock-in-trade
Government Securities - - = -
Debt Securities 17.03 37.21 — 54.24
Nifty Linked Debentures - - 123.76 123.76
Stock-in-trade 17.03 3721 123.76 178.00_
Investments
Equity instruments o - 0.10 0.10
Investments in Funds - - - -
Investment in Tech fund - = * o
India Credit Investment Fund I - - 2,524.98 2,524.98
India Credit Investment Fund | - - 1,055.49 1,055.49
Total investments measured at fair value - - 3,580.57 3,580.57
Land and Building 2,024 51 2,02451
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 17.03 37.21 5,728.84 5,783.08
Particulars 31-Mar-22
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments (assets)
Exchange-traded derivatives - - - -
OTC derivatives - - - -
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures issued 2z 2 = 2
Total derivative fi | instruments (assets) - - - -
Stock-in-trade
Debt Securities 620.70 - - 620.70
Nifty linked debentrues = - 4.28 4.28
Stock-in-trade 620.70 - 4.28 624.98_
Investments
Equity instruments - - 1.00 1.00
Investments in Funds 2 " 314.08 314.08
Investment in Tech fund - x 199.79 199.79
India Credit Investment Fund Il 1,511.33 1,511.33
india Credit Investment Fund | - - 2,147.00 2,147.00
Total investments measured at fair value - - 4,173.20 3,173.20
Loans and other financial assets measured at fair value & =
Property Plant and equipment - = 3
Land and Building 2,205.58 2,205.58
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring hasis 620.70 - 6,383.06 7,003.76
$5.1. Fair valuation techniques :

Debt securities

Whilst most of these ‘instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded derivative
characteristics. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting
date. Company has used quoted price of national stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity
traded Companv has used CRISIL Cornorate Bond Valuer madel for measuring fair value.

Equity instruments

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on recognised stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such
instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on fund net asset value {NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other
restrictions. Such NAV Such instruments are generally Level 3. Equity instruments in non-listed entities are initially measured at transaction price and re-
measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level. Such unlisted equity securities are classified at Level 3

Units of Alternative Investment Funds and Mutual Fund.

Units held in Alternative Investment funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions.
Such instruments are classified at Level 3.

Open-ended funds that are redeemable at any time, and that report a daily net asset value {NAV) and for which sufficient subscriptions and redemptions

Derivatives
The Comapany enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment grade credit ratings. Derivatives

valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs are mainly interest rate swaps, exchange traded futures and options contracts. The
mast freauenttyv anolied valuation techninues include aunted nrice for exchanee traded derivatives and Rlack Schales madels for nntinn valuation)

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derwvative.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Q)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.The information given below is with respect to financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost for which the fair value is different than the carrying amount. Carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and other payables as on 31 March 2023 approximate the fair value because of their short-term
nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financials assets and other financial liabilities is not
Significant in each of the years presented.

31 March 2023

Total Carrying

Particulars Amount Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans 297.66 297.66 = - 297.66
Investments at amortised cost - = = - =
Total 297.66 297.66 - - 297.66
Financial liabilities
Debt securities 14,354.71 14,354.71 - - 14,354.71
Borrowing (other than debt
securities) 7,297.30 7,297.30 - - 7,297.30
Subordinated liabilities 447.10 447.10 - 447.10 -
Total 22,099.11 22,099.11 < 447.10 21,652.01
31 March 2022

Total Carrying
Particulars Amount Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Loans 10,935.51 10,935.51 - - 10,935.51
Investments at amortised cost 2,120.60 2,120.60 - - 2,120.60
Total 13,056.11 13,056.11 - - 13,056.11
Financial liabilities
Debt securities 17,039.51 17,039.51 - < 17,039.51
Borrowing (other than debt
securities) 15,813.03 15,813.03 - - 15,813.03
Deposits - =
Subordinated liabilities 2,234.50 2,234.50 - 2,234.50 =
Other financial liabilities -
Total 35,087.04 35,087.04 = 2,234.50 32,852.54
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Derivative financial instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts.

31 March 2023

Notional

Particulars

Unit

Notional amount

Fair value of asset

Notional

Unit

Notional amount

Fair value of liability

{i) Currency derivatives

-Currency Futures

Number of currency
units

Nil

Number of currency
units

Nil

Less: Amount offset {refer note 59 - offsetting
disclosure)

Number of currency
units

Number of currency
units

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

31 March 2022

Notional

Particulars

Unit

Notional amount

Fair value of asset

Notional

Unit

Notional amount

Fair value of liability

(i) Currency derivatives

-Currency Futures

Number of currency
units

Nil

Number of currency
units

Nil

Less: Amount offset (refer note 59 - offsetting
disclosure)

Number of currency
units

Number of currency
units

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

* Notional amount represents quantity of the Derivatives contracts and are reported in millions
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57 Investments
As at 31 March 2023
At fair value At cost
. Designated at fair Subtotal {subsidiaries, _
Particulars AtAmartlsed cost Through OC! (2) | Through P&L (3) value through 5 = (2+3+4) associates, and Total (7)=(L5+5)
(1) Profit or loss (4) joint ventures) {6)

(i) Debt securities = - - - - - -
(i) Equity instruments E - 0.10 - 0.10 0.10
(i) Subsidiaries

a) Equity & - - 3 5 3,935.31 3,935.31

b} Debt securities - - - - - - -

¢} Preference shares - - - - - 858.92 858.92
(iv) Associates - - - - -

a) Equity - - = - - - -

b} Debt securities - - - = - =

c) Preference shares - - - - - - -
(v) Others - Investment in Partnership Firm- Group E - - - - 3.16 3.16
(vi) Others - Investment in Funds = % 3,667.28 " 3,667.28 - 3,667.28
(vii) Investment in compulsory convertible instruments and put options - - - - - 12,351.01 12,351.01
TOTAL - Gross (A) - - 3,667.38 - 3,667.38 17,148.40 20,815.78
(i) Investment outside India - -
(i} Investment in India - 3,667.38 3,667.38 17,148.40 20,815.78
Total (B) = g 3,667.38 - 3,667.38 17,148.40 20,815.78
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - 86.81 - 86.81 1,538.96 1,625.77
Tatal Net (A-C) - = 3,580.57 - 3,580.57 15,609.44 19,190.01
As at 31 March 2022

At fair value At cost
; Desi at fair (subsidiaries, 0
Particulars At Amortised cost) . ohOCI(2) | Through PEL(3) | value through S=(24314) | associates,and | O )= (145+6]
- Profit or loss (4) joint ventures) (6)

(i) Debt securities 2,126.26 2 - - - - 2,126.26
(ii) Equity instruments - - 1.00 - 1.00 - 1.00
(i) Subsidiaries - - - - - -

a) Equity = 5 - a o 3,889.14 3,889.14

b) Debt securities - - - - - - -

¢c) Preference shares - - - - - 839.75 839.75
(iv) Associates = - - - - - %

a} Equity - - - - - 110.35 110.35

b) Debt securities 4 = & - - - =

Ty PTeferente shares < = = < = - -
(v) Others - Investment in Partnership Firm - Group - - s . - 3.65 3,65
{vi} Others - Investment in Funds - - 4,260.01 - 4,260.01 - 4,260.01
{vii) Investment in compulsory convertible instruments and put options - 12,350.84 12,350.84
TOTAL - Gross (A} 2,126.26 = 4,260.01 - 4,260.01 17,193.73 23,580.00
(i) Investment outside India - -
(i) Investment in India 2,126.26 4,260.01 4,260.01 17,193.73 23,580.00
Total {B) 2,126.26 = 4,260.01 - 4,260.01 17,193.73 23,580.00
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) 5.67 86.81 86.81 1,023.09 1,115.57
Total Net (A-C) 2,120.59 = 4,173.20 - 4,173.20 16,170.64 22,464.43
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58 Income tax

The components of income tax expense recognised in profit or loss for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Current tax s “
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years e ¥
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 215.46 (74.47)
Total tax expense 215.46 (74.47)
Total current tax - .
Total deferred tax 215.46 (74.47)

Reconciliation of the total tax expense

The tax expense shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax expense that would apply if all profits had been charged at India
corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are follows:

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Profit / {Loss) before tax {1,753.08) (820.48)
Tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Income tax expense calculated based on above tax rate (612.60) (286.71)
Write-down / reversal of write down of deferred tax assets on unused tax credits and unused

tax losses (net) 215.46 (74.47)
Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-period losses 612.60 286.71
Others - -
Tax expense recognised in profit or loss 215.46 (74.47)

The Government of India, on 20 September 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 (the Ordinance) , inserted a new
Section 115BAA in the Income tax Act, 1961, which provides an option to the Company for paying Income tax at reduced rates. The Company is
continuing status quo and in due course will evaluate whether to transit to available option under the Ordinance.
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

59.8 Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits on which deferred tax asset is not recognised in balance sheet

“March 31, 2023

Financial Year to which the loss relates to Deductible temporary differences Unused tax losses Unused tax credits
P long-term capital losses Unabsorbed business losses | Total MAT Credit
Amount Expiry year - financial (Amount Expiry year - financial |Amount Expiry year - financial |Amount | Expiryyear - financial [Amount  {Amount  [Expiry year -
vear year year year financial
year
FY 2022-23 856 00 |Not applicable - - - - 1,560.00 | FY 2030-31 1.560.00 -
FY 2021-22 140.55 [Not applicable 153.03 | Not Applicable - = 553.41 | FY 2029-30 706.44
FY 2020-21 7,082.45 |Not applicable - 936.18 | FY 2028-29 902.17 | Fy 2028-29 1,838.35
March 31, 2022
Financial Year to which the loss relates to Deductible temporary differences Unused tax losses Unused tax credits
L preciati L long-term capital losses Unabsorbed business losses [ Total MAT Credit
Amount Expiry year - financial |Amount Expiry year - financial |Amount Expiry year - financial [Amount  [Expiryyear - financial [Amount  |Amount  [Expiry year -
vear year year vear financial
year
FY 2021-22 140,55 | Not applicable - - - - 91161 | FY 2029-30 91161 - -
FY 2020-21 7,082.45 | Not applicable - - 936.18 902.17 | FY 202829 1,838.35 - -




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

60

Credit Quality

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the company’s internal credit rating system and year-end stage
classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Company’s internal grading system are explained in Note 52 and policies

on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set out in Note 52.

Loans 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
At rtised
ar::st L at FVTPL Total At amortised cost  at FVTPL Total

Loans

Corporate Loans 7,834.91 7,834.91 19,426.31 = 19,426.31
Total Gross {A) 7.834.91 - 7,834.91 19,426.31 19,426.31
Less: Impairment loss allowance* 7,537.25 - 7,537.25 8,490.81 - 8.490.81
Total {Net) (A) 297.66 - 297.66 10,935.50 » 10,935.50

*Included in loans and advances an amount of Rs.5,945.54 million (Previous Year: Rs.9,492.31 million) receivable as at March 31,

2023 from Edelweiss

Investments Adviser Limited (“EIAL”). EIAL had invested in and had exposure to real estate sector. Over the few years, real estate sector is facing operational
challenges and due to which the risk for certain counterparties has increased leading to increased provisioning in the books of EIAL under the expected credit loss
models. EIAL has performed detailed assessments of its current and future business plans and on that basis has continued on the expected credit loss amounting
to Rs. 5,934.73 million on loans and advances. The Board of Directors of the company have reviewed and approved business plan, impairment loss and

assessment of recoverable amount as at March 31,2023,




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

60 Credit Quality (Continued)

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company internal grading and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented

are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the company internal grading system are explained in Note 52 and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual
or collective basis are set out in Note 52

Gross carrying amount of foan assets allocated to Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3

Loans at amortised cost

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Stage | Stage Il Stage i Total Stage | Stage |l Stage i Total
Performing
High grade 236.33 - = 236.33 15,634.39 % E: 15,634.89
Standard grade . - - . . 1,317.58 1,317.58
Substandard grade - - " o o = = -
Non-performing
Impaired - - 7,598.57 7,598.57 i < 2,473.84 2,473.34
Tatal 236.33 Vi 7,598.57 7,834.90 15,634.89 1,317.58 2,473.84 19,426.31
Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and allowances for expected credit loss
Particulars Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stage | Stage Il Stage Il
Gross carrying Allowance for Gross carrying Allowance for Gross carrying Allowance for  Gross carrying  Allowance for
amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL
Balance at 1 April 2022 15,634.89 5,934.44 1,317.58 196.74 2,473.84 2,359.63 19,426.31 8,490.81
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1) 2 g ¢
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) S - - - - - - -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired {Stage 3} = = * = * = - -
Dot £ECL isinaf £
of stage = - = = E &
Net new and further lending/{repayments)
{including write-off} -15,398.56 -5,934.44 -1,317.58 -196.74 5,124.73 5,177.62 -11,591.40 -953.57
Balance at 31 March 2023 236.33 - - - 7,598.57 7,537.25 7,834.91 7.537.24
Particulars Non-credit impaired Credit impaired Total
Stagel Stage Il Stage Hl
Gross carrying  Allowance for Gross carrying Aflowance for Gross carrying Allowance for  Gross carrying Allowance for
amount ECL amount ECL amount gct? amount ECL

Balance at 1 April 2021 27,448.70 5,934.75 - - 2,475.50 2,415.51 29,924.20 8,350.26
Transfers: = & = = = = =
Transfers to 12 Month ECL {Stage 1) = s = 2 -
Transfers to lifetime ECL {Stage 2) » - - = . & -
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired {Stage 3) - . ® = = = 5
Net re-measurement of ECL arising from transfer
of stage = = = = ~ 2 ] =
Net new and further lending/(repayments)
{including write-off) (11,313.81} {0.31} 1,317.58 196.74 {1.66} {55.88} {10,497.89) 140.55
Balance at 31 March 2022 15,634.89 5,934.44 1,317.58 196.74 2,473.84 2,359.63 19,426.31 8,480.81




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
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61 Other Disclosures:

a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Below table shows changes in in liabilities arising from financing activities during the reporting period

Cash Finance costs during
Particulars 1-Apr-22 flows the year 31-Mar-23
Debt securities 17,039.51 (4275.33) 1,590.54 14,354.72
Borrowings other than debt securities 15,813.04 (9978.91) 1,461.90 7,296.03
Subordinated liabilities 2,234.51 (1980.01) 192.60 447.10
Total liabilities from financing activities 35,087.06 (16,234.25) 3,245.04 22,097.85
Cash Finance costs during
Particulars 1-Apr-21 flows the year 31-Mar-22
Debt securities 34,009.49 (19,411.20) 2,441.22 17,038.51
Barrowings other than debt securities 2,433.04 10,684.26 2,695.74 15,813.04
Subordinated liabilities 2,047.86 - 186.65 2,234.51
Total liabilities from financing activities 38,490.39 (8,726.94) 5,323.61 35,087.06
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Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

61

b)

Other Disclosures (Continued)

Revenue from contract with customers

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers and its reconciliation to amounts reported in statement of profit and loss:

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Nature

Fees and commission
income

Service transferred at a point in time

Agri Shared Services {ASC), Real Estate Advisory Practice (REAP) and

6.88

Others
Service transferred over time Enterprise cost sharing 776.46
Total revenue from contract with customers 783.34

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars Nature Fees and commission
income

Service transferred at a point in time Agri Shared Services (ASC), Real Estate Advisory Practice (REAP) and 13.32

Service transferred over time Enterprise cost sharing 740.91

Total revenue from contract with customers

754.23
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

62 Details of Ratio:

Particular 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 Variance Reason for Variance

Debt-equity Ratio (Refer note 1) 511 5.58 (8.38)%|Decrease in Borrowings

Debt Service Coverage Ratio {Refer note 2) Profit before interest and
0.13 0.28 | (53.42)%|tax

Interest Service Coverage Ratio (Refer note 2) Profit before interest and
0.46 0.85 | (45.76)%|tax

Earnings Per Share - Basic (Face Value of Rs10/- each) (27.23) (11.38)| (139.31)%|Increase in loss

Earnings Per Share - Dilutive(Face Value of Rs10/- each) (27.23) (11.38)] (139.31)%|Increase in loss

Total Debts/ Total Assets (Refer note 3) 0.82 0.84 {2.31)%|Decrease in Borrowings

Notes:

1.Debt-equity Ratio = Total Borrowing {Non Current Borrowing + Current Borrowings ) / Net worth

2.Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Profits before interest and tax / (interest expenses + Principal Repayment in next six months)
Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Profits before interest and tax / Interest Expenses

3.Total debt to Total assets = Total Borrowing {Non Current Borrowing + Current Borrowings ) / Total assets.

company.

4.Current ratio, Long Term Debts to Working capital, Bad Debts to Accounts Receivables Ratio, Current Liability Ratio, Debtors
turnover, Inventory turnover and Operating Margin (%), Net Profit Margin {%) are not applicable owing to the business model of the

N i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {continued)
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63

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and rules there under The Ministry of Labour and
Employment has alse released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The
Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once the rules are notified and become effective

64 Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company
There is no immovable property(other than properties where the Company 1s fessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the company, where title
deeds are not held in name of company.
65  Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.
66  Wilful Defaulter
The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.
67  Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companies (ROC}
The Company does not have any charges or which is yet to be regi with ROC beyond the statutory period
68 ip with Struck off €
Transaction with compantes struck off under section 248 of the companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
For March 31, 2023
Name of struck of Company [Nature of transactions with struck off Company Balance outstanding Relatianship with the struck
off Campany
‘Anahat Organisation
Development Consultancy Pvt
Ltd Professional Fees Nil Vendor
Shams Cable Network Office expense Nil Vendor
Kamal Enterprises MISCELLANEOUS Nil Vendor
MR D ENTERPRISES Repairs & Maintenance Nil Vendor
For March 31, 2022
Relationship with the struck
Name of struck of Company Nature of transactions with struck off Company Balance outstanding i
off Company
Reuters India Private Limited Rent expenses Nil Vendor
NMCI Inspections and survey
Company Private Limited Sale of Scrap Nil Client
69  Undisclosed Income
The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previousty unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.
70 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current financial year and any of the previous financial years
71 The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, without specifying period of repayment of principal to companies. However, during the year the Company has executed
v with such to stipulate the schedule for repayment of principal. Of these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the
natuce of loans granted 1o orrelated parties ac defined in clanse {761 of 2, 2afthe £ Act 2013
For March 31, 2023
Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in the to the total
Promotors Nil NA
Directors Nil NA
KMPs. Nil NA
h‘ewamd Parties Ni NA
For March 31, 2022
Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advanceinthe  [Percentage to the total
nature of loan outstanding Loans and Advances in the
nature of loans
Promotors Nil NA
Directars Nil NA
KMPs. Nil NA
Related Parties 31.833.40 5.5% to 52%
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72

A) During the current year and previous year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(B) During the current year and previaus year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall, Other than as disclosed i note (1) below

(i directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 0n behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{ii) provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultmate Beneficiaries

Note (1)

During the year, the Company has taken loans fram its holding company and given loan to its fell in the ordinary course of business, which
are at Arm's length and the same is approved by Board Audit Committee of the Company. The Company confirm that the below transactions ara in accordance with relevnt
provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 {42 of 1999) and Companies Act, 2013 and the such transactions are not in violation of the Prevention of Money-
Laundering Act, 2002 (15 of 2003)

FY 2022-23
Name of Lender Nature Date Rs. in Name of Nature Date Rs. in millions|Remarks
millions | Companyin
which
investment done
by the Campany
Ecap Equities Limited|Loan Taken Various Dates 780.00 |Edelweiss Rural{Purchase of|21-Mar-23 780.00 | 1) ELL is associate of ERCSL.
(Formerly known as Edel Land & Corporate|NCD of Ecstasy,
Limited{ELL) Services Limited |Limited
320.10 {ICIF Il Investment  in|27-Mar-23 320.10 |1) ELL 15 associate of ERCSL
AlF Units and ICIF 1l s fellow
subsidiary of ERCSL
220.00 [Edelweiss Loan Given 28-Mar-23 220.00 |1) Ecap Equities Limited is
Alternative Asset associate of ERCSL and EAAA|
Advisors Limited is fellow subsidiary of ERCSL
(EAAA)
Edelweiss Loan Given Various Dates 1) ELL is associate of ERCSL
Investment and EIAL is subsidiary of
Advisors  Limited| ERCSL
1,048.10 |{EIAL} 1,048.10
1,190.00 |Edel Finance|Loan Given Various Dates 1,190.00 [ 1) ELL is associate of ERCSL
Company Limited|
{EFCL)
ECL Finance Limited (ECLF) Loan Taken Various dates 590.00 |Edel Finance {Loan Given Various Dates 590.00 [1) ECL Finance is fellow
Company Limited subsidiary of ERCSL and EFCL
(EFCL) is holding company of]
ERCSL. 2) ERCSL has repaid
its borrowing from ECLF,.
EECL  ha repaid it
borrowing to ERCSL.
386.70 [Ecap  Equities 386.70 [1) ECL Finance 15 fellow
Limited subsidiary of ERCSL and ELL|
{Formerly known| is an associate of ERCSL. 2|
as  Edel Land| ERCSL  has repaid its
Limited)(ELL) borrowing from ECLF and
ELL has repaid its borrowing
to ERCSL,
Edel Finance Company Limited|Loan Taken Various Dates 450.00 |Edelcap Loan Given Various Dates 450.00 [1) EFCL 15 holding company|
(EFCL) Securities of ERCSL and Edelcap is|
Limited {Edelcap) subsidiary of ERCSL. 2}
Edelcap has  repaid its
borrowing from ERCSL
200.00 [Edelweiss 20000 [1) EFCL is holding company,
Securities & of ERCSL and ESIPL is fellow
Investments  Pvt subsidiary of ERCSL. ESIPL|
Ltd (ESIPL) has repaid its borrowing
from ERCSL,
Edel Investments Limited (EIL) |Loan Taken Various Dates 750.00 |Nuvama Wealth|Loan Given 750.00 1) EIL is fellow subsidiary of
and ERCSL and EBL is associate of|
Limited (EBL) EFSL. 2) Borrowings from EIL|
has been repaid by ERCSL.
EBL has repaid its borrowing
to ERCSL
250.00 {Edel Finance| 250.00 |1) EIL 15 fellow subsidiary of
Company Limited| ERCSL and EFCL 15 holding
{EFCL) company of ERCSL. 2)ERCSL|
has repaid its borrowing
from EIL
Various Dates
Edelcap Securities Limited|Loan Taken 7-Apr-22 250.00 [Nuvama WealthiLoan Given Various Dates 250.00 |1}  Edelcap 15 fellow
(Edelcap) and substdrary of ERCSL and EBL|
Limited (EBL) s associate of EFSL. 2|
Borrowings from  Edelcap
has been repaid by ERCSL
£BL has repaid its borrowing
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Edelweiss Financial Services|Loan Taken 28-Dec22 957.09 [ICIF If [investment  inf28-Dec-22 957.09 [1) EFSL 15 ultimate holding]
Limited (EFSL) AIF Units company of ERCSL and ICIF i
is fellow subsidiary of ERCSL

Loan Taken Vanous Dates | 2,120.00 [Edel  Finance|Loan Given 2477un-22 2,120.00 [1) EFSL 15 ultimate holding,
Company Limited company of ERCSL and EFCL]
(EFCL) is holding company of

ERCSL. 2) EFCL has repaid its
borrowing from ERCSL

Loan Taken Various Dates | 1,750.00 [Edelweiss Retail|Loan Given  |26-Dec-22 1,750.00 |1) EFSL is ultimate holding
Finance Limited company of ERCSL and ERFL|
(ERFL) 15 fellow subsidiary of ERCSL

ERFL  has repaid its
borrowing from ERCSL.

Loan Taken Various Dates | 2,148.00 |Edelweiss Loan Given 30-Dec 22 2,148.00 [1) EFSL 15 ultimate holding
[investment company of ERCSL and EIAL|
Advisors Limited is subsidiary of ERCSL.
(E1AL)

Loan Taken Various Dates | 200.00 [Ecap  Equities|Loan Given  |Various Dates 20000 |1) EFSL 15 ultimate holding

Limited company of ERCSL and ELLis
{Formerly known associate of ERCSL. ELL has
as  Edel Land repaid 1ts  borrowing to
Limited)(ELL) ERCSL

Edelweiss  Retail  Finance|Loan Taken 1-Jun-22 18240 [edel  Finance|Loan Given 16-Jun-22 182.40 |1) ERFL 1s fellow subsidiary

Uimited (ERFL) Company Limited of ERCSL and EFCL is holding;
(EFCL) company of ERCSLERCSL has|

repaid its borrowing from
ERFL.2} EFCL has repaid its

Nido Home Finance Limited|Loan Taken Various Dates | 4,490.00 |Ecap Equities|Loan Given Various Dates 4,490.00 (1) NHFL s subsidiary of]

(Formerly known as Limited ERCSL and ELL 15 associate of

Housing  Finance  Limited)(| (Formerly known ERCSL. ERCSL has repaid its,
NHFL) as Edel Land borrowing from NHFL. ELL

Loan Taken 1-Jun-22 300.00 |Edel Finance(Loan Given 16-Jun-22 300.00 |1JNHFL 15 subsidiary  of]

Company Limited ERCSL and EFCL is holding

{EFCL) company of ERCSL. ERCSL|

has repaid its borrowing
from NHFL.2) EFCL has|
repaid_its_borrowing_from

ERCSL
Loan Taken 5-Jul-22 929.00 |Edelweiss Loan Given 25-Jul-22 1,039.00 |1) NHFL 15 subsidiary of|
|Investment ERCSL and EIAL 15 subsidiary]|
Advisors Limited| of ERCSL. 2) ERCSL has
(EIAL) repaid its borrowing from
NHEL.
FY 2021-22
Name of Lender Nature Date Rs.in Name of Nature Date Rs. in millions| Remarks
millions | Company in
which
investment dane
by the Company
Edelweiss Financial Services  {Loan Taken Various dates 5,714 (Edelweiss Loan Given Various dates 5,714 [EFSL is Halding Company of
Limited (EFSL) Investment ERCSL and EIAL 1s wholly
Adviser owned subsidary of ERCSL
Limited{EIAL)
Edelwerss Financial Services  |Loan Taken Various dates 6,585 |Edel Finance Loan Given Various dates 6,585 [1)EFSL is ulimate holding
Limited (EFSL) Company Linuted Company of ERSCL and Edel
(Edel finance) Finance is holding company
of ERCSL.
2) Edel finance has repaid Rs
3,952 40 millions back to
ERCSL and ERCSL has also
repaid the same back to
Frgl
Edelweiss Financial Services  |Loan Taken Various dates 8,200 |ECL Finance Loan Given Various dates 8,200 (1) EFSL1s ultimate holding
Limited (EFSL) Limited (ECL Company of ERSCL and ECL
Finance} Finance 1s subsidiary of EFSL
and is fellow subsidary of
ERCSL.
2) ECL finance has repaid Rs.
7,420 million back to ECRSL
and ERCSL has also repaid
the same back to EFSL.
Edelweiss Financial Services  {Loan Given 9-Jun-22 1,130 (Edel Land Loan Given 9-Jun-22 1,130 | 1)EFSL s ultimate holding
Lmited (EFSL) Limited (ELL) Company of ERSCL and Edel
Land is wholly owned
subsidiary of EFSL and fellow
subsidary of ERCSL.
2) edel Land has repaid Rs
1,130 million back to ERCSL
and ERCSL has also repaid
the same back to EFSL.
Note (2)

Based on the legal opinion obtained by the ultimate Holding Company (EFSL), the transactions undertaken by NBFC-CIC of borrowing/lending/investment to and from its
holding/subsidiary/affiliate/group entity(ies) or borrowing from outside the Group for onward lending/investments for carrying on their respective business in ordinary course
will not attract reporting under Rule 11{e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {the ‘Rules'}. Accordingly, transactions undertaken by the Company with Edel
Finance Company Limited (NBFC CIC) is not disclosed under the Rules.
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73 There have been no events or transactions which have occurred since the date of balance sheet or pending that would have matertal effect on the financial statement and requires adjusting
1o accounting estimates and disclosures included in financial statements at that date or for the period then ended, other than those reflected or fully disclsoed i the financial statements.
No events have occured that are of such significance in refation to the comapny's affairs to require mention in a note to the financial statements in order to make them not misleading
regarding the financial position, results of operations, or cash flow or changes in equity of the company

74  The Company is in compliance with number of layers of companies, as prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.

75 The Company has already responded to authorities on show cause notice in respect of import of pulses in earlier years. There are no further updates subsequent to Company's responses
Based on the management assessments, there is no impact on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

76  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirements of Schedule il unless otherwise stated,
77 Previous year's numbers have been regrouped and rearranged whenever necessay to confirm to current year presentation/classification

As per our report of even date attached.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
[CAl Firms Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Shrawan Jalan Ravindra Dhobale ChiragShah
Partner Executive Director & CFO Company Secretary
Membership No: 102102 DIN No :05147051

Mumbai Mumbai

May 22, 2023 e May 22,2023
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